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» Chairman’s Statement

EERWMES

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic triggered a global crisis that made
the year extraordinarily difficult for economies worldwide. The two
major markets of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were also affected. Despite facing
the severe tests brought by COVID-19, and also the complex and
changing environment at home and abroad, China was able to stay
collected and pushed forward with epidemic control, implemented
measures to propel economic and social development across the
country and rolled out strategic plans on steadfast strides. As such, the
Chinese economy started picking up steadily since the second quarter
of the year, with production and demand warming up. China’s gross
domestic product for the year saw a 2.3% growth. As for Vietnam,
although affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, she was able to
contain the spread of the pandemic effectively with active preventive
measures. In 2020, her gross domestic product grew by 2.9%, mainly
driven by the manufacturing, industrial and construction sectors; the
agricultural sector managed a 2.7% growth.

At the beginning of the year, the COVID-19 pandemic struck China
hard and added uncertainties to the agri-food industry. The industry
continued to face systematic pressures and challenges. Spread of the
African swine fever, which began in 2019, eased during the year, but
the disease is likely to stay for the long term. In 2020, governments
at all levels in China earnestly implemented policies supportive of
swine production, helping farmers to speed up resumption of capacity.
Also, expecting African swine fever to persist, relevant preventive
and control measures were taken to drive the resumption of swine
production. As a result, overall swine market saw a recovery in supply
and prices started coming down gradually. On the broiler side, supply
going up and COVID-19 dampening consumption sentiment created
an oversupply in the broiler market, hence causing prices to linger
low.

Dedicated to encouraging enterprises to pursue sustainable and
high-quality development, China has been tightening relevant
environmental regulations, aiming to better protect the eco-
environment. As such, the livestock industry is stepping into a new,
ecology-driven era of development. Feed manufacturers, bounded by
regulations, have stopped using antibiotics as feed additives, and are
pushing for further transformation and upgrade. Scaled production
is now becoming mainstream. These factors combined have posed
systematic pressures and challenges to the traditional agri-food sector,
yet they will also provide the industry with opportunities and the
motivation to upgrade. The different challenges also presented the
industry with the all-important prompt to embark on digitalisation.
Employing new digital technology, animal farming, logistics and
other related operations can be integrated, forming a digitalised
swine production ecosystem — a step integral to the healthy, fast and
continuous development of the industry.
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China’s agri-food industry is massive, translating into multiple growth
impetuses for the Group. The Group will continue its commitment to
quality, safety, green practices and sustainable development. It will
adopt international standards and use advanced technologies to ensure
the high quality of its products and services and help bolster the CP
brand. We aspire to become a world leader and an example to emulate
in the modern agri-food sector.

In Vietnam, despite facing challenges from the COVID-19
pandemic, African swine fever and natural disasters, the economy
still recorded modest growth in 2020. In recent years, Vietnam had
signed a number of significant free trade agreements, including
The Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership with 14 other
countries in 2020. To capture opportunities presented by those free
trade agreements and push forward Vietnam’s livestock industry
reform, during the year, the prime minister of Vietnam approved
the national animal husbandry development strategy for 2021-2030.
The strategy centres around industrialisation and modernisation,
sustainable development and meeting demand for high quality and
safe food products in the country and from overseas. It also stresses
using advanced technologies to boost competitiveness of the agri-food
industry.

In late 2020, as a leader in the agri-food industry in Vietnam,
the Group established Southeast Asia’s largest integrated poultry
production complex in Binh Phuoc province in Vietnam, producing
poultry products for the domestic and export markets. Adopting the
most advanced technology and supporting sustainable production,
the establishment of this complex serves as the Group’s important
step towards capturing overseas demand for high quality and safe food
products. We will continue to invest in latest technologies as well as
contribute to a better environment. We believe the Group is at the
forefront of benefitting from the increasing demand for safe and high
quality agriculture products at home and abroad.

Looking ahead, continuing with the “Kitchen of the World” as its
vision, the Group will push to integrate its core competencies and
diligently pursue its integrated value-chain business model. We will
embrace end-to-end quality control, as well as eco-friendly and green
operations, offering safer and healthier food products that can meet
the diverse needs of consumers.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all members of
the team for their efforts and contribution to the Group in the past
year. My gratitude also goes to our shareholders and stakeholders for
their unwavering trust and support over the years.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2021

HAREARD > PR RKRMERNBRELR > £S
HEREB I AERNT > REBFRE K2 &
6~ MR B > T BB R AR - BB
R MG S A o DR R R A N A IRES  ATREIE R
A il L > A R R A A o SR A B
B -

AE BT o Bfe 2K T BT R RENG ~ I YN AR B R SEE
74 2R 1 P B > (LR g P R R R R AR SRR
MG R o T4 > BB E T B A B S
R > ALAE Y AR St 8 R 5 5 Y I
g 2 TG A R A R AR 2 ) o s AR B Pl B T
JoF 45 2 F 7 S 4 B R A A o L A
RERFMRT T2 F=FFNBEXEHE
B I o % N O R TR AL A BUARAL - TR
BERE ~ T2 A B AR R AR S R >
S8 R R PR S 2 L A 4R v SR A A SR BT T e

P B P R A R AR e - ABEER &R
EX T XN R R AR SC YN TP
BREEGEEE RN > BB N DS R R AR
Al o J R R d o A B I S K T R AR R > %
P ik b R 4 I A 6 A0 o B R % A R R
AT 20 o JRAMIF AR AT 51 B SR MR B > [ IRE
Ry BRBEAE R o BRAMI R 5 AR 42 1 i A A Aok
B 52 an 7 B A A A B R R A I R R I o

JEBEARAE > A4 I 4 A S T A S8 e | v e S
FoRBGASEOES > BRIEGEERBN 2R
sty B 7 T 0 Ao 6 00 P A R A J M B R AR > HE
LA BRI DR HEE N ZHAE K -

BefR > AC N G 0 R T R A R B AR IR 2 — 4R
Fi A5 Hh B4 55 0 A B RR > o 20 R 45 M R S 5 o
— L DA 2R B AP B4 £ A S

CAE PN
HFR

FH> _F_—4#-A"1+HNH



Aspiring to become the “Kitchen of the World”, we are dedicated to
creating safe and high-quality products across the agri-food value chain,
from feed milling, animal farming to food manufacturing. We embrace
sustainability and advanced technologies as we continue to develop our
business in China and Vietnam.
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Investing in China for over 40 years, the
“Chai Tai” name is well known and
trusted in the country.
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With over 25 years of experience in Vietnam,
our contribution to the country’s agricultural and
social development has been recognized.
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2020 2019
(Restated)
(Unit: US$ million) (Hfr 2 i #FEoE) (R 5)
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEEMWKHEREA
Revenue WA 4,333 3,495
Gross Profit B 1,282 699
Share of Profit of a 35%-owned Associate — CTI —FKA35%Z B A ) — IEKRBE — AL B A 66 -
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company AR ) B AR 6k A 2,155 346
Continuing Operations' R RS R 519 217
Discontinued Operations ORI R T 170 129
Gain on Deemed Disposal of CTI B EIERRE 2 W 1,466 -
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)? A B B AR T i R (SEAIL) 2 8.507 1.365
Continuing Operations R R 2.049 0.856
Discontinued Operations ORI R T 0.670 0.509
Gain on Deemed Disposal of CTI AR 8 IR R 2 ek 5.788 -
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) RS GEAL) 10.6 3.2
Interim Dividend Per Share A I v B B 3.0 0.8
Final Dividend Per Share B e AT e 7.6 2.4
(Unit: US$ million) (Hifr : HHSET) 2020 2019
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMHERREKER
Property, Plant & Equipment LUE BN e ] 1,589 1,988
Investment in Associates =g/l Uk < 2,331 146
Total Assets A 6,597 5,346
Total Bank Borrowings & Corporate Bond HRGRAT A R B A S 1,136 1,735
Issued Capital OB AT AR 253 253
Shareholders’ Equity T SR E A HE 7 3,548 1,548
Total Equity HE £5 48 A 4,033 1,967
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA BEET B BEEET
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to Shareholders BHEXETT Per Share AL
of the Company® 800 - BB 12 -
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Remarks ffff 5k
1. In 2020 profit attributable to shareholders of the Company from continuing operations before effect of net changes in fair value of biological assets was
US$511 million (2019: US$154 million). . N »
TR H RN SO AN A ) R T I T AR A W B R R A AR L WA RS I MR BT (SRR ¢ LS4 o
2. Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and convertible

g);eference shares in issue during the year.
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3. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company excludes gain on deemed disposal of CTIL.

B B AR B IE R A% 2 WA AR 2 ) T M Al i A o

12

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
-8 - 8 F F g



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

B A R 2

7

Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

The Group operates in China and Vietnam. We are a leading agri-
food industry player in both countries and our businesses range from
feed milling, animal farming to food production.

During the year, the Group completed an important transaction in
China, marking our strategic move to create a leading integrated
swine business in China. The Group merged its China feed and
swine food businesses under Chia Tai Investment Co. Ltd. (“CTI”),
originally a subsidiary of the Group, with Charoen Pokphand Group’s
(“CPG”) swine business in China. In this transaction, the Group
contributed 87 China feed and 2 swine food companies (mainly
engaged in sale of pork) valued at approximately US$2.3 billion;
CPG contributed 43 China swine companies, valued at approximately
US$4.3 billion. The merger was structured as an all-share transaction
settled by CTI issuing new shares, representing 65% of CTI’s enlarged
share capital, to CPG. Consequently, the Group’s shareholding
in CTI reduced from 100% to 35%. The resulting business of CTI
becomes a top 10 player in both animal feed and swine farming
in China. This strategic move further strengthened the Group’s
integrated agri-food business model in China and enables us to better
capture growth opportunities arising from the commercialization of
feed milling and swine farming in China.

The transaction was completed on 1 December 2020. As a result,
the Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020
comprise, for the China part, of eleven months of its “old” China
business and one month of its “new” China business. In other words,
in the first eleven months of the year, the Group’s main businesses
in China included feed, poultry farming, swine food and value-added
processed food businesses. From 1 December 2020, the Group’s main
businesses in China included (i) poultry farming and value-added
processed food businesses operated by its subsidiaries, and (ii) feed and
integrated swine businesses operated by CTI (and its subsidiaries), an
associate of the Group.

In terms of financial reporting under consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, continuing operations principally cover (i)
our China poultry farming and value-added processed food businesses,
(ii) share of profit of a 35%-owned associate — CTI — in China and
(iii) our Vietnam operations. Discontinued operations principally
include our China feed and swine food businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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GROUP RESULTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue, which
excludes discontinued operations, increased 24.0% to US$4,333
million (2019: US$3,495 million). Agri-food business in China
contributed 19.8% of the Group’s revenue while agri-food business
in Vietnam contributed 80.2% of the Group’s revenue. Overall gross
profit margin for the year was 29.6% (2019: 20.0%). The Group’s
profit attributable to shareholders was US$2,155 million. Excluding
the one-off gain on the deemed disposal of CTI of US$1,466 million,
the Group’s profit grew from US$346 million in 2019 to US$689
million in 2020. Extending the trend in the first nine months of 2020,
the full year profit growth was mainly due to a significant increase in
swine prices in Vietnam in 2020 when compared to 2019, resulting in
higher profit margin from the Vietnam farming business.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 8.507 cents (2019:
US 1.365 cents). Excluding the one-off gain on the deemed disposal
of CTI, basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 2.719 cents
(2019: US 1.365 cents). The Board has proposed a final dividend per
share (“DPS”) of HK$0.076. Including interim DPS of HK$0.03, total
DPS in 2020 was HK$0.106 (2019: HK$0.032). The Group also paid
a special DPS of HK$0.008 in 2020 to mark the Group’s 40 years in
China.

Total Revenue
FAON

4,333

US$ million
BEXET

A H

SEXE (&)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 brought China’s
economy to a halt and caused some operational delays and disruptions
to the Group’s businesses. As a leading agri-food player in China, we
strive to maintain our production so as to enable a stable supply in the
food production value chain. Nonetheless, while the performance of
our feed business remained solid, those of our farm and food businesses
situated in hard hit areas during the initial COVID-19 outbreak were
impacted as a result of logistical issues.

The African swine fever situation in China started to come under
control in 2020 but overall swine prices remained high. This
situation motivated scaled farmers who have financial resources to
increase swine production, driving demand for swine feed in the
Group’s targeted feed segment — the commercial segment. On the
poultry side, the outbreak of African swine fever in 2019 led to some
farmers switching to poultry farming but consumer demand was hit
by COVID-19 in 2020. This situation resulted in an oversupply of
poultry and subsequent decline in broiler prices, benefitting our
poultry feed sales but hampering our poultry farming business.

Continuing Operations

Continuing operations in China cover our poultry farming and value-
added processed food businesses. In 2020, revenue from continuing
operations in China increased to US$856 million from US$714
million in 2019 as we continued to ramp up the production of our
food factories. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s continuing
operations decreased from 19.2% in 2019 to 4.6% in 2020, mainly
affected by the operational disruptions caused by the initial outbreak
of COVID-19 and the reduction in broiler prices as compared to 2019.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations include our China feed and swine food
businesses for the period covering 1 January 2020 to 30 November
2020. Revenue of the Group’s discontinued operations in China,
which was de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to
US$4,182 million (full year 2019: US$3,466 million). Profit for the
period from discontinued operations attributable to shareholders was

US$170 million (full year 2019: US$129 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Agri-food Business in China (continued)
Discontinued Operations (continued)

The Group’s China feed revenue for the first eleven months of
2020, which was de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to
US$3,752 million (full year 2019: US$3,159 million). Swine, poultry,
aqua, other feed products and premix accounted for 50.4%, 31.8%,
7.0%, 6.7% and 4.1% of China feed revenue, respectively. China feed
sales volume was 7.83 million tons (full year 2019: 6.93 million tons).
Swine feed sales increased as China replenished swine inventory.
Also, the switch to poultry farming due to the earlier African swine
fever outbreak benefitted our poultry feed sales. Revenue from our
swine food business for the first eleven months of 2020, which was
de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to US$430 million,
compared to US$307 million in the full year of 2019, mainly due to
the surge in swine prices compared to 2019.

Share of Profit of a 35%-owned Associate — CTI

CTI, as from the completion of the merger on 1 December 2020, is
principally engaged in China feed and integrated swine businesses.
The Group’s share of profits of this 35%-owned associate as from the
completion date was US$66 million in 2020 (2019: Nil). This amount
represented our 35% share of CTI’s profit for the month of December
2020.

Agri-food Business in Vietham

In 2020, Vietnam’s economy remained relatively resilient under
pressures from the COVID-19 pandemic, natural disasters and animal
diseases. While Vietnam was inevitably affected by COVID-19, the
impact on the country’s local economy was less severe compared to
other countries.

African swine fever had been a threat to the agri-food industry in
Vietnam since early 2019 and continued into 2020, with the second
wave hitting the industry in the fourth quarter of 2020. The outbreak
of African swine fever caused a decline in swine population. Supply
shortage in the market resulted in a surge in swine prices. Generally
speaking, swine prices in 2020 hovered at historical high levels. High
swine prices were beneficial to our swine farming business although
lower swine population in Vietnam had some effect on the demand for
swine feed. Overall, our Vietnam agri-food business remained strong.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Agri-food Business in Vietham (continued)

The Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam generated revenue of
US$3,477 million, representing an increase of 25.0% year-on-
year. Feed business accounted for 25.8% of the Group’s Vietnam
revenue, while farm and food businesses combined accounted for
74.2%. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business
in Vietnam leaped to 35.7% in 2020 (2019: 20.2%), mainly due to

increased margin from our swine farming business.

In 2020, total feed sales volume in Vietnam decreased 4.0% year-on-
year to 1.63 million tons but feed revenue increased 1.3% year-on-
year to US$899 million. Swine, poultry, aqua and other feed products
accounted for 29.4%, 23.4%, 45.6% and 1.6% of this segment’s
revenue, respectively. Our swine feed sales reduced along with lower
swine population. Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic dampened
demand for poultry, impacting our poultry feed sales. On the other
hand, the Group has expanded an effective shrimp feed marketing
programme that successfully raised the sales of our higher priced
shrimp feed, more than offsetting the decline in overall feed sales.

Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$2,578 million, a 36.1% increase year-on-year.
Swine farming continued to be the major revenue contributor of this
segment. Favourable swine prices for the year lifted the performance
of this segment. Average selling price of our fattening pigs in 2020
was approximately VND76,600 per kg while the average selling price
was VND46,200 per kg in 2019 — an increase of 65.8% year-on-year.

OUTLOOK

Going into 2021, despite positive developments on the vaccine front,
uncertainties stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic is expected to
continue. Outbreak of animal diseases would also bring uncertainties
and challenges to the Group — African swine fever remains a threat
and the avian flu new variant is also posing new challenges to the
agri-food industry. Overall, despite the solid results of 2020, we
remain cautious for 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of US$6,597.2
million, representing an increase of 23.4% as compared to US$5,345.8
million as at 31 December 2019.

Net debt (31 December 2020: US$586.5 million, 31 December 2019:
US$1,292.5 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank borrowings
and corporate bond minus cash and deposits divided by total equity)
was 0.15 as compared to 0.66 as at 31 December 2019.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

Bank borrowings and corporate bond of the Group are denominated
in U.S. dollars (31 December 2020: US$746.8 million, 31 December
2019: US$672.1 million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December
2020: US$163.9 million, 31 December 2019: US$343.5 million)
and Renminbi (“RMB”) (31 December 2020: US$225.2 million, 31
December 2019: US$719.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current portion of long-
term borrowings amounted to US$44.3 million (31 December 2019:
US$330.0 million), and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$136.1 million (31 December 2019: US$361.0 million).

the year, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts

During

to manage its interest rate exposure for the floating interest rate
borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate notional principal
amount of these outstanding derivative financial instruments was

US$145.1 million.

All domestic sales in the PRC and Vietnam are transacted in RMB
and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain
raw materials, equipment etc. The Group monitors foreign exchange
movements and determines appropriate hedging activities when
necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB and VND was
US$143.1 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$537.5
million as at 31 December 2020, an increase of US$112.8 million as
compared to 31 December 2019.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, out of the total borrowings of US$1,135.9
million (31 December 2019: US$1,734.8 million) obtained by the
Group, US$115.2 million (31 December 2019: US$186.7 million)
was secured and accounted for 10.1% (31 December 2019: 10.8%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate net book value of
US$128.8 million) (31 December 2019: US$207.7 million) were
pledged as security.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
US$22.2 million (31 December 2019: US$21.2 million). The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees as
at 31 December 2020 were US$10.2 million (31 December 2019:
US$10.5 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s biological assets amounted to
US$718.4 million (2019: US$638.3 million). The increase in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2020 of
US$80.1 million (2019: US$82.2 million) was mainly attributable to
purchases and raising of biological assets of US$1,151.2 million (2019:
US$1,749.1 million) minus sales of biological assets of US$979.9
million (2019: US$1,664.2 million). Details of the Group’s biological
assets are set out in note 20 to the financial statements of the annual
report. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a positive net change in fair value of biological assets of US$2.8
million (2019: US$105.6 million). We have complied with relevant
laws and regulations and have obtained the requisite licenses and
permits for carrying out our farming business from relevant regulatory
authorities, including the Investment Certificate issued by the
Management Board of Dong Nai Industrial Zone in Vietnam.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed around 37,000 staff
in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market conditions while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example,
medical insurance and training.
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Corporate Governance Report
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C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high
corporate governance standards, the principles of which are to uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, accountability and integrity
in all aspects of business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) — Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) and the disclosure requirements of
Corporate Governance Report throughout the year 2020.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors, including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and five
independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among the Directors are
set out in the Biographical Details of Directors section of the
annual report.

(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Group.
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are
the Chief Executive Officers of China area and Vietnam
area respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officers are distinct and separate with a clear
division of responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board while the Chief
Executive Officers are responsible for managing the Group’s
business.
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THE BOARD (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) provide advisory, check and balances
for effective and constructive contribution to the Board to
safeguard interests of the shareholders and the Company as a
whole.

The management is responsible for execution of business
strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. All Directors
responded to a specific inquiry by the Company and confirmed
that they complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during 2020.
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THE BOARD (continued)

)

(9)

Directors’ Training

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as
directors of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During 2020, all Directors,
being eight executive Directors, namely, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont, Mr. Narong Chearavanont, Mr. Bai Shanlin,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
and Mr. Yu Jianping; two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont and Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe; and five
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej, Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo, Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej
Sitabutr, participated in continuous professional development
by respectively attending one or more of the following:
trainings organized by the Company and other professional
organisations and director training webcasts and e-training
provided by the Stock Exchange.

General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held
one annual general meeting, one special general meeting,
eleven Board meetings, five Audit Committee meetings,
three Remuneration Committee meetings, two Nomination
Committee meetings and two Corporate Governance
Committee meetings.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to perform their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can
attend board meetings in person or by means of telephone
conference or similar communications equipment.
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TEEBRRE
THE BOARD (continued) Exe(#)
General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board () REAS -EESRETSBTNZEESS
Committee Meetings (continued) & (])
The attendance of each Director of the meetings in 2020 is set TERINBEMEFN Z_ZEHTEaTEN
out in the following table: H s 2 e
No. of meetings attended/held
K/ AR B TRY
Annual Special Corporate
General General Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~Governance
Meeting Meeting Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Tk i i3 HH 4 bEER
REkE  BikE e ZHE %HE ZHE %HE
Executive Divectors A&%
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chaimnan) % A Jek (ZE £ I 0 10/11 - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak RakEs 1 01 1 - 3B 0 -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WLk 0 0 st - 13 12 -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont ELSs I 0 10/11 - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE o il 911 - - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg i 11 Wil 1 - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan& 1: I 0 111 - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRTEE Vil 11 11 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FhiE%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Wik 00 00 9/11 55 - - 0
Mr. Yoichi [kezoe i~k I 1 10/11 - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors Ve Vi
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 11 01 111 55 33 - -
Mss. Vatchari Vimooktayon Varchari VimooktayonZ+: I 0 1/11 - 33 2 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo iR li I 1 565 - - 0
Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (1) Pongsak Angkasich# & (1) - Wil 414 bl - - 1
General Udomdej Sitabutr (1) Udomdej Sitabutef % (1) - 0 44 - 0 - -
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (2) ERELE () 0 - 07 3 Wit 12 11
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes (3) Sombat Deo-isres i (3) I - M - 11 N 11
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul (3) Sakda Thanitcul e (3) Wil - 07 3 - 12 11
Notes: Mk :

(1) Each of Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej

Sitabutr was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of

the Company with effect from 6 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung retired from the Board with effect from

the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on

5 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM”).

(3) Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul resigned from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—T R -2 FER

(1) Pongsak Angkasith#4Z & Udomdej Sitabutri$ &
GBIV RE R AN R B SLIEPAT IS - R %
BAENHANHER -

(2) R EE Y R RENH
T HBRITZARARBRAERYG (2R R
JBe SR A B 1) 5 R IR 2K o

(3) Sombat Deo-isres#62E & Sakda Thanitcul 64 437l
BHEE R G - R R BRI E KRGS
HIRE AR -

23



24

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

Corporate Governance Report
LEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)
(h) Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in
annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section of the annual report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to four committees which
operate under their respective defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of each committee member to the committee

meetings in 2020, by name, is set out above.
(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(Chairman), Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej and Professor Dr.
Pongsak Angkasith (appointed in June 2020) and a non-
executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Ma Andrew
Chiu Cheung was previously Chairman from 2005 to May
2019 and a member from May 2019 until his retirement from
the Board in June 2020. Mr. Sakda Thanitcul was previously a
member from 2008 until his resignation from the Board in June

2020.
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U]

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including support from the Internal Audit
Department, external auditor and management, to perform
its duties in reviewing the Group’s financial results, material
financial, operational and compliance controls.

During 2020, the Audit Committee held five meetings. The

following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in
2020:

o reviewed the related financial information set out in
the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2019, and gave
recommendations to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2019;

o reviewed the related financial information set

out in the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
and gave recommendations to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2020;

o Reviewed the positive profit alert announcements and

the announcement pursuant to Rule 13.09(2) of the
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Future
Ordinance, and gave recommendations to the Board for
approving the publication of such announcements before
the publication of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and the quarterly results for
the three months ended 31 March 2020 respectively;

o reviewed the internal audit reports of the Group;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken
by the external auditor; and

° reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

U]

Audit Committee (continued)

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the related financial information set out in the annual report
and the annual results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2020 and gave recommendations to the Board for
approval.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and the
approval of the remuneration and the terms of engagement
of the external auditor. To ensure the external auditor’s
independence, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and
non-audit services undertaken by the external auditor during

the year.

During 2020, the remuneration paid by the Group to the
external auditor is set out below:

A

=

AR BREZRGFRHMRE T
FAE+ A= AR AR R R 24 3
ROy 9 BT R B B R Sl
I o

FHZ BT A BN A Z AT - A
A1 RE S0 B 7 4t A I A% R Y T 4 SIS A
K o By HE DRSNS AZ WO A M S - W R
AR AR P E P A S T AT I A%
YE T 28

e T RAR > ARG S Ak AP A B Y
EWE

2020

B

(US$’000)

Category of Services JIR 5 % 50 (FxLTc)

Audit Services % IR 2,436
Review engagements and FHHEM R

agreed-upon procedures AT E 2P 577

3,013

Other services oAt AR 7% 1,060

Total ok 4,073
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej (Chairman), Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
and General Udomdej Sitabutr (appointed in June 2020) and
two executive Directors, namely Mr. Adirek Sripratak and
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont. Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
was previously Chairman from April 2012 to May 2019 and a
member from May 2019 until his retirement from the Board
in June 2020. Mr. Sombat Deo-isres was previously a member
from September 2005 until his resignation from the Board in
June 2020.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration policy and structure for all directors
and senior management, and consider and recommend to
the Board the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the
success of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
Company to its shareholders. The objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry
practices.

During 2020, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings to determine remuneration packages for the Directors
and senior management and other remuneration matters.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors (including the
executive Directors who are regarded as the Company’s senior
management) for 2020 are set out in note 10 to financial
statements.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mrs. Vatchari
Vimooktayon (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and General
Udomdej Sitabutr (both appointed in June 2020) and two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Adirek Sripratak and Mr.
Suphachai Chearavanont. Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung was
previously a member from April 2012 until his retirement from
the Board in June 2020. Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr.
Sakda Thanitcul and was previously a member from April 2012
until his resignation from the Board in June 2020.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual(s)
nominated for directorship and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for successive terms of one year each
and, together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement
by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

During 2020, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to (i) review and assess the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors and review the profiles and
contributions of the retiring Directors, and (ii) review the
Board composition and consider the nomination of new
Directors.
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Subsequent to the year end, the Nomination Committee, RN E s IRAZ B EM GBIk
having reviewed and assessed the independence of all AT IE 5 2 0 o S 2 T JBE st T i IR
independent non-executive Directors and reviewed the profiles EEFZEE L ER > 85 o e A
and contributions of the retiring Directors who have offered AT REHRFEERET LR TSR EE -
themselves for re-election, recommended the Board to propose
the re-election of such retiring Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
Details of retirement and re-election of Directors are set out BIEREREREZFEHRRFEHRESIHE
in the section headed “Directors” on page 51 of the annual HH|—Hio
report.
The Company adopted a board diversity policy which sets out AKATRMEREEZ ALK > BlEf Bz
the approach to achieve diversity in the Board. The Company HEETLZ LN T« RAFR BRI
is committed to maintain high corporate governance standards BEAEEIRART » i R EE L L E R
and recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse € 1)U i DL ok AT B0 IR o
board to strengthen its effectiveness and governance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity e N B IR — R P Lo b 8 A R > G
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender, AR R - £ - XILEABEER - H
age, cultural and educational background, professional R B Mk RN REEE
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The EIEEARANF SRR T o
Nomination Committee will also take into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs.
Board Diversity Profile
E R TR (4N
15 —
Independent Agriculture
Non-executive >70 B
12 — Director
W IERAT S Accounting and
Finance
Non-executive R G SE
9 — Director
Number of Directors BT
EEIN 3

6 —

3 —

0 —

Gender Designation Age Expertise and Experience
il Tt AR SO0 £
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)
(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)

The nomination policy adopted by the Company is set out
below:

1 Purpose

1.1 The Nomination Committee of the Company has the
primary responsibility of identifying and nominating
suitably qualified candidates to become Directors (to
fill casual vacancies and as new Board members).

1.2 This Policy sets out the approach with respect to
the selection and nomination of candidates for
directorship of the Company so as to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business for the Board to consider and,
if appropriate, appoint as additional Directors or as
Directors to fill casual vacancies, as the case may be,
or make recommendations to the shareholders of the
Company for election as Directors at general meetings.

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements
2.1 The Nomination Committee may select suitably

qualified candidates to nominate to the Board from
such resources as the Nomination Committee considers
appropriate, including through referrals by members of
the Board, by the management of the Company and by
external professional agencies and other resources.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

2

2.2

2.3

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall consider the factors
listed below, together with any other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate, in
assessing the suitability of any candidate:

- character, reputation and integrity;
- qualifications, accomplishments and experience;

- capacity to devote sufficient time to discharge
duties amidst other significant commitments;

- effect on the diversity of the Board, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional and
industry experience, skills and expertise;

- (where the proposed candidate is being
considered as a candidate for an Independent
Non-executive Director position) ability to
fulfil the independence requirements under the
Listing Rules; and

- potential contributions to the Board and any
other relevant factors.

The list of factors stated above is for reference only
and not intended to be exhaustive or definitive. The
Nomination Committee shall assess all relevant factors
with a view to achieve the Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs and has the discretion
to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

The candidates shall timely provide such information
and documents relating to their nomination as the
Nomination Committee or the Board may request,
including but not limited to any such information as is
required for disclosure under the Listing Rules and their
written consent to be elected as Directors and to the

public disclosure of their information.
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3

3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Rules and Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and
in advance of the meeting invite nomination of
candidates from members of the Board, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may put forward other
candidates irrespective of whether such candidates have
been nominated by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of
all necessary information relating to the candidates,
evaluate each of such candidates at the meeting based
on the criteria set out in Section 2 above to determine
whether to make a nomination to the Board.

The number of candidates nominated by the
Nomination Committee may exceed the number
of casual vacancies or vacancies for Director’s
appointment by the Board or at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to the appointment of candidates as Directors
and its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at any general meeting.

Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the meeting of the
Board at which his/her appointment is to be considered
or the general meeting at which he/she is to stand for
election by serving a notice in writing to the Company.

Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority,
under no circumstances may a member of the
Nomination Committee disclose any information to the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
whilst such information has not been disclosed by the
Company to the public.

Review

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy
from time to time, as appropriate, and discuss any
revisions that may be considered appropriate, including
to ensure that it remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects both current regulatory requirements
and good corporate governance practice, and
recommend them to the Board for approval.
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(iv)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
6 Disclosure of Policy

The Policy may be disclosed in such manner as the
Board considers appropriate and in compliance with
any applicable regulatory requirements or guidelines.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor
Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (Chairman) (appointed in June 2020)
and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont and an executive Director, Mr. Bai Shanlin
(appointed in November 2020). Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
was previously Chairman from August 2016 to May 2019 and
a member from May 2019 until his retirement from the Board
in June 2020. Mr. Sombat Deo-isres was previously a member
from August 2016 until his resignation from the Board in June
2020. Mr. Sakda Thanitcul was previously a member from
August 2016 and became Chairman in May 2019 until his
resignation from the Board in June 2020.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board with the primary responsibilities to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
review and monitor training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to the
employees and the directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2020, the Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings to review the Group’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the Group’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2020 and reviewed the environment, social and governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risk of failure associated with
the Group while achieving its business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A risk appetite statement has been established to define
the extent of risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its
strategies and business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department.
The Internal Audit Department carries out independent review
of key business processes and controls, while key findings and
recommendations for improvement are regularly reported to the
Audit Committee. The external auditor also reports any control issues
which have been identified in the course of audit or review work
to the Audit Committee. Management is responsible for designing,
implementing and monitoring risk management and internal control
systems, whereas risk owners appointed by the management are
responsible for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues
for further consideration by management, and ensuring that the
risk monitoring and control system are working effectively and
risk mitigation actions are implemented in a timely manner within
business units.

Effectiveness Review

During the year, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board considers that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the Group
has adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improve our risk management
and internal control framework and will continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business
process.

For handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with the legal requirements and,
where required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a
timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened by the Board on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may
from time to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in
default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the
Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to convene a meeting within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing
(and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to all members of
the Company.

To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.

To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than one hundred members, can submit a written requisition to the
Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or state the business to be dealt with at that
meeting and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company no less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or no less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting at which the candidate is proposed for election and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mzr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 56, Chairman of the Company,
has been an Executive Director of the Company since 2005 and
a Vice Chairman from February 2010 until his appointment as
Chairman of the Board in May 2019. He also holds directorships
in several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. He is also Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG Company”). He is a director and Chairman
of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) and
CP ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”) (both listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand), a non-executive director and Chairman
of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”) (listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)), a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. (listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an executive
director and Chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”)
(which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until
its withdrawal from listing in October 2019). Mr. Chearavanont was
previously a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited
(“True Corporation”) (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand). He
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA.

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 74, has been an Executive Director and a
Vice Chairman of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
since April 2012. Mr. Sripratak has been a director of CPF since
1998, its Vice Chairman since 2013 and Chairman of its Executive
Committee since 2017. He was previously the President and Chief
Executive Officer of CPF from 2003 to 2017. He is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company and of CPF. Mr. Sripratak is
also a director of CP ALL and Siam Makro Public Company Limited
(“Siam Makro”) (both listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand).
He has more than 40 years’ experience in the agri-business and food
industry. His valuable experience is widely recognised and has led to
his appointment to a number of public offices and positions. He is the
Honor President of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters Association
and was previously a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand
and an Honorary Director of Chiang Mai University Council. He
received Honorary Doctorates from a number of universities in
Thailand including Maejo University, Mae Fah Luang University,
Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai
University, Rajamangala University of Technology Isan and Kasetsart
University.
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 53, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2008, Vice Chairman of the Board
since May 2019 and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
September 2019. Mr. Chearavanont has extensive experience in the
telecommunication and broadcasting industries. He is a director,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Executive Board of CPG
Company and a director and Chief Executive Officer of True Visions
Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited. He has
positions in the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand: True Corporation (director and Chairman), CPF (director
and Vice Chairman), CP ALL (director and Vice Chairman) and
Siam Makro (director and Chairman). He is also an executive director
of CP Lotus. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Administration from Boston University in USA, majoring
in Financial Management.

Mzr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 55, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since June 2019, having previously served as an
Executive Director of the Company from 2005 until his resignation
from the Board in 2010. Mr. Chearavanont has extensive experience
in retail, telecommunication, agri-food and other industries. He is a
director of the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand: True Corporation, CP ALL and Siam Makro. He is also
an executive director and the Vice Chairman and of CP Lotus. Mr.
Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from New York University, USA, a Certificate of
Advance Management Program in Transforming Proven Leaders into
Global Executives from Harvard Business School, Harvard University,
USA and an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business Administration
from Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. He also completed
the Systematic Innovation of Products, Processes, and Services
programme at Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of
Management.

Mr. Bai Shanlin, aged 61, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since February 2010. He was the Chief Executive Officer
(Feed Division) of the Company from February 2010 until April 2012
since which time he has been the Chief Executive Officer (China
Area). Mr. Bai was appointed a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company in November 2020. Mr. Bai has extensive
experience in the management of agri-business operations. He joined
Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. Mr. Bai also holds directorships in
several companies within the Group. He is also a part time professor
at Gansu Agricultural University and Renmin University of China.
He obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal Science from Gansu
College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist
Certificate in Agricultural Management from the Australian
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock
Management in the PRC.
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Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 68, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since April 2012. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of experience in animal feed sales
and breeding. He has been with Charoen Pokphand Group since
1980 and is currently a member of the Executive Board of CPG
Company. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorships in several
companies within the Group. He was previously a director of CPF. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber
of Commerce with a bachelor degree in Economics.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 72, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan
has also been an Executive Director of CPF since 2002 and also a
director of several of its subsidiaries. Mrs. Watcharananan graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in
Economics.

Mr. Yu Jianping, aged 60, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2017. Mr. Yu is currently a senior executive
of the Group, primarily responsible for the food business of the
Group in China. He also holds directorships in several companies
within the Group. Mr. Yu has been working for the Group since
1995. Mr. Yu received a Bachelor of Science degree from the Faculty
of Mathematics, Jilin University in China in 1982 and a Master of
Economics degree from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in China in 1989.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 62, had been an Executive Director
and Executive Vice Chairman of the Company from 2005 until
his re-designation as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2010 when he was also appointed a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Jiaravanont has also been a member
of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company since
August 2017. He has extensive experience in investment, finance,
banking and strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr.
Jiaravanont is also an executive director of CP Lotus. He is currently
the Senior Executive Assistant to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen
Pokphand Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
Occidental College, California, USA and a master degree in Business
Administration from New York University, USA.
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Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 61, has been a Non-executive Director
of the Company since October 2015. Mr. lkezoe is also a non-
executive director of CTEIL. Mr. Ikezoe is currently Deputy CEO for
East Asia Bloc, Senior Officer of Asia and Oceania Bloc, CP and
CITIC (Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU Corporation (listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange and formerly known as C.ITOH & Co.,
Ltd.) and Chairman of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited, ITOCHU
Shanghai Limited and ITOCHU (China) Holding Ltd. Mr. Ikezoe has
been working for ITOCHU Corporation since 1983. He received his
Bachelor of Arts degree from the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka
University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2012 and a
member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Vittavasgarnvej
was the Director General of The Treasury Department, Ministry
of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to 2011 and the Director General
of The Revenue Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand
from 2008 to 2010. Mr. Vittavasgarnvej holds positions in the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand:
CPF (independent director and member of the Audit Committee),
Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. (independent director
and Chairman), Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited
(independent director and Chairman of the Audit Committee) and
Srisawad Corporation Public Company Limited (independent director,
Vice Chairman and Chairman of the Audit Committee). He was
previously an independent director of Syn Mun Kong Insurance Public
Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand). Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Political Science from Thammasat University,

Thailand.

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2013 and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
May 2019. She was also appointed a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company in May 2019 and became its Chairman
in September 2019. Mrs. Vimooktayon held various government
positions in Thailand from 1997 and retired from the position of
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce in September
2013. She is currently an independent director and member of the
Audit Committee of CPF. Mrs. Vimooktayon obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration (Accounting) from Thammasat
University, Thailand, a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Sukhothai
Thammathirat University, Thailand and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from National Institute of Development
Administration, Thailand.
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee
since January 2020, and he was appointed a member of the
Nomination Committee in June 2020. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.
He is also an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
CTEI, CSI Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited; Kidsland International Holdings
Limited and Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr.
Cheng was previously an independent non-executive director of
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and CP Lotus. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from
University of Kent, the United Kingdom in 1983 and a Master of
Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and Finance,
from London School of Economics and Political Science, the United
Kingdom in 1984. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith, aged 72, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company, Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee since
June 2020. Prof. Dr. Pongsak has extensive experience in agriculture.
He is currently Chairman of Pracharat Rak Samakkee Chiang Mai
(Social Enterprise) Co., Ltd., Chancellor of College of Agricultural,
Innovation Biotechnology and Food, Rangsit University, President
of Thai Arabica Coffee Association and Executive Director and
Head of Coffee Research Royal Project Foundation. He has been an
independent director of CPF since 2013 and also serves as Chairman
its Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development
Committee and a member of its Audit Committee and Remuneration
and Nominating Committee. He obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Agriculture from Chiang Mai University, Thailand, a Master of
Science Degree and a Doctor of Education Degree from Oklahoma
State University of Agriculture and Applied Science, the USA. He
also completed various agricultural and management related courses in
the Netherlands.
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General Udomdej Sitabutr, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee since June
2020. Gen. Udomdej held a number of positions throughout his career
with the Royal Thai Army. He was First Army Area Commander in
2010 and became Chief of Staff in 2012 and Commander-in-Chief of
the Royal Thai Army in 2014 before his retirement from the Royal
Thai Army in 2015. He was also the Deputy Minister of Defence of
Thailand from 2014 to 2017. Gen. Udomdej obtained a Bachelor of
Science Degree from Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy and
completed various courses at Command and General Staff College and
National Defence College in Thailand.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and Mr.
Narong Chearavanont are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee
Watcharananan. Save as disclosed above, there is no other material
relationship among members of the Board.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group operates in Vietnam and China. In Vietnam, the Group is
principally engaged in the (1) production and sale of animal feed, (2)
breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and (3)
production and sale of value-added processed food products. In China,
the Group is principally engaged in poultry farming and production
and sale of value-added processed food products. The Group also has
a significant investment in a company operating in China which is
principally engaged in the production and sale of animal feed and
breeding, farming and sale of swine and sale of pork.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section, Financial Highlights section and Management
Discussion and Analysis section of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key
relationships with stakeholders are set out below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Report 2020 to be issued.

The Directors are not aware of any important event affecting the
Group since the end of the financial year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed

below. Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set
out in note 49 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Volatility of Commodity Prices

Price of farm products is dependent on the demand and supply as
well as the economic condition and consumer purchasing power and
confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there is a negative impact
on the selling price of the farm products which in turn affects the
performance of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group’s results may also be affected by
price volatility of main ingredients used in the production of animal
feed, including corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw
materials are basic agricultural commodities and their prices are
affected by global commodity prices as well as domestic demand and
supply. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity price information when purchasing
these raw materials.

Product Quality and Safety

Product quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. Failure to maintain quality control during the manufacturing
process may lead to poor quality products and result in complaints,
claims for compensation or product recalls, penalties and damage
to the Group’s reputation. The Group is committed to producing
high quality and safe products from its manufacturing process and
has traceability systems for raw materials used and quality assurance
systems throughout its supply chains.

Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for a particular kind of meat may change due
to loss of consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or
a change in consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s
purchasing power increases, preference may also shift from low cost
protein sources to higher cost protein sources. A decline in demand
for any particular kind of meat will directly affect the sales of such
meat, indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed products
as well as the demand for the food products made from such meat. In
order to keep alert to customers’ demands and determine appropriate
marketing strategies, management continuously follows the behavioral
change and satisfaction of consumers.

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock, poultry or aquatic animals would
affect the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.
The Group will continue to provide regular training to its employees
to keep up with the knowledge and understanding on diseases and
outbreaks, as well as continuously conduct surveillance, follow-up,
data analysis and communication of information on diseases and their
outbreaks.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally located in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam
are conducted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales
and import of raw materials, machinery and equipment are conducted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result in
loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated borrowings
and increase the costs of imported raw materials, machinery and
equipment. Furthermore, depreciation of RMB/VND against US$
would also adversely affect results of the Group, as the results of
the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would be reduced
on translation from RMB/VND to US$, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange movements and consider hedging when necessary. Please
refer to note 49(c) to the financial statements of the annual report for
the foreign currency risk exposures of the Group as at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total bank borrowings of US$1,135.9 million as
at 31 December 2020, 88% of which were at floating rate which
subjects the Group to interest rate risk. In the decision making for the
selection of sources of capital, the Group will consider various factors
such as rate of return expected by shareholders, current and expected
interest rates in the market and debt-to-equity ratio of the Group.
Please refer to note 49(a) to the financial statements of the annual
report for the interest rate risk exposures as at the end of the reporting
period.

Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment
regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s internal
legal department will ensure compliance with the laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As a
testament of our commitment to environmental protection, some of
our operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs
and energy consumption in our production processes. In 2020, there
was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental
performances are evaluated on a regular basis.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination.

We place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy work
environment for our employees. In our operations, safety trainings
are offered to production staff. We have obtained OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems certification
in some of our food operations, which serves to demonstrate
our capability in managing the potential occupational hazard in
workplaces.

Customers

The Group has a diversified customer base and we perceive customers’
satisfaction with products and services are key to our success. The
Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that safe, nutritious,
environmentally friendly products are produced and delivered to
our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction, the Group’s
sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions. With continuous
feedback of our customers, we will continue to improve our product
and service qualities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Key Relationships with Stakeholders (continued)
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment to
product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement process,
we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment criteria,
including their service quality, environmental and social performance,
and ability to supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We
also perform on-site inspections of our suppliers as and when necessary

to ensure our requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements of the annual report.

During the year under review, (i) a special dividend of HK$0.008
(2019: nil) per share, and (ii) an interim dividend of HK$0.03 (2019:
HK$0.008) per share were declared and paid.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.076 (equivalent to
approximately US 0.974 cent) (2019: HK$0.024 (equivalent to
approximately US 0.308 cent) per share, totaling approximately
US$246,834,000 (2019: US$77,947,000) (based on the total number
of issued ordinary shares and convertible preference shares as at
the date of this report). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11
June 2021, the 2020 final dividend will be paid on 6 July 2021 to the
ordinary share holders and convertible preference share holders whose
names appear on the registers of members of the Company on 23 June

2021.

The register of members holding ordinary shares of the Company
will be closed from 8 June 2021 to 11 June 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of ordinary shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 11 June 2021, all transfer forms for ordinary
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2021.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

In addition, the registers of members holding ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares of the Company respectively will be
closed from 21 June 2021 to 23 June 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the 2020 final dividend, all transfer forms for
ordinary shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2021.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2020, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RO R ZF-)N\E R ZFAHF
US$’°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FiFx  Fxfo  FrFr  Frfr - FErTi
Total assets Fig =g 6,597,182 5,345,838 4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425
Total liabilities FS =Ry 2,564,472 3,378,800 2,909,138 2,717,565 2,214,677
Non-controlling interests I Jri ] A 2 484,328 418,764 346,721 277,654 295,182
Equity attributable to /NN
shareholders of the Company JE Ak HE 25 3,548,382 1,548,274 1,355,503 1,237,710 1,123,566
6,597,182 5,345,838 4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425
Profit for the year attributable to A< 2\ &] Bt 5 HE Al
shareholders of the Company T A1 (R A 56 41
(exclude gain on deemed (RN N3
disposal of Chia Tai B A R A E]
Investment Co., Ltd. ([EXREE] 2
(“CTI”)) W) 688,796 345,803 281,659 41,867 260,278

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16

to the financial statements of the annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2020, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 50 and 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to US$1,406,836,000 (2019: US$1,435,285,000), out of
which US$246,834,000 (2019: US$77,947,000) has been proposed as
a final dividend for the year. Details of the proposed final dividend are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements of the annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy which sets out the approach
of the Company on the declaration and payment of dividends to
shareholders of the Company.

The Board is responsible for considering and, if appropriate, declaring
any interim dividend or recommending any final dividend to the
shareholders for approval every year. Any approved dividends must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Declaration or recommendation of any dividend will take into
consideration the Company’s results of operations and financial
conditions, business strategy and future development and any other
factors that the Board may deem relevant. No dividend shall be
declared or paid except out of the Company’s profits and reserves
lawfully available for distribution. The payment of dividend is also
subject to applicable laws and regulations, including any applicable
restrictions under the Company’s Bye-laws.

Future declarations or recommendations of dividends may or may not
reflect the Company’s historical declarations or recommendations
of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Board.
At the time when the Board makes the announcement as to its
recommendation of final dividend, if any, in respect of the last
completed financial year, it will also endeavour to indicate whether,
and, if so, how much dividend is, in the absence of unforeseen
circumstances, expected to be declared and/or recommended in
respect of the current financial year.

In 2020, the Group completed the transaction of merging its China
feed and swine food businesses under CTI, originally a subsidiary
of the Group, with Charoen Pokphand Group’s swine business in
China. As a result, a substantial portion of our new China business
runs under CTI, an associate of the Group, which can stand on
its own with regards to expansion and funding. In the absence of
unforeseen circumstances, the Board intends to raise dividend pay-out
to approximately 50% of net profit attributable to shareholders for the
financial year ending 31 December 2021.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$4,392,000 (2019: US$3,907,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases of continuing operations attributable to the
five largest customers and the five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31
December 2020 respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Narong Chearavanont

Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
Mr. Yu Jianping

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (1)
General Udomdej Sitabutr (1)

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (2)
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres (3)

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul (3)

Notes:

(1) Each of Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej Sitabutr was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 6 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung retired from the Board with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2020
(the “2020 AGM”).

(3) Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul resigned from the Board

with effect from the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
were appointed for a term of one year, subject to renewal by mutual
agreement, and, together with all other Directors, are subject to
retirement by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at
annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, Mr. Yoichi lkezoe, Mr.
Vinai Vittavasgarnvej and Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon will retire
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements of the annual report, none of the Directors had
any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements of the annual report, there had been no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2020.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

B A R 2
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Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERFRTRAEREAQAREMERE
BHROREBRONERR LR

PERIFET A= H > WERE SR R B
1 5535200 BLAE pi A 2 W] A7 2 %% G i i c 8% > X
SR B¢ A A S S i A 2 ) B 0B A2 i 8 A R A - A%
N B EATBON B R A A R B R I s 1 Y
i B A Bl M v R i R % (4% o B YT B R ) 5
XVl pr e 4 ) @ym

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long (a) EERAQATNER (FA)
Positions)
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued ordinary
ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
A2 ]
P % 2 B A7 0 I S A
HHELW 54 Ji& 4oy B H LAY T 43 b
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
R ek HaERHEA A
(b) Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b) EBRAQATANEBLEENER (FAR)
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited FAL¥EBEERA A
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of director Capacity shares held associated corporation
A5 FH R 2
[REEFY N
WA B4 Pt ¥ BB A B H R ONEp i
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%

AR e T A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND

PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR

SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

A

FERRRBEFSRMERARER T
BEEARESEIARENAL

PERIRET A= H o MRS R
Bl 553360 L A2 Hh AR 2 W) A7 2 B AL P AL 8k > T
WAL GEAAFMEEREEITHANE) RAAF
VR T 1 B AL R P AT O RS SR RN T

Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares and the issued ordinary
underlying shares share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity held the Company
A 24 W]
ity ko TS ERRA
JBE 3 44 W - B 1 3 9 E MAA S
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Ht7E1) (WiEl)
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner, interest of 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation and
concert party
HARYEA N ~ fEdl g E R X
—HATHMAL
Charoen Pokphand Group (3) Interest of controlled corporation 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Company Limited 2 1 3k B R 2

ITOCHU Corporation 4) Beneficial owner and concert party 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)

A S Y S v A AR —BATEHMH AL

Notes: Mt
(1) The Letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) [LIRFEIFA -

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) had a long position
in 19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company which included
(i) 1,261,077,748 convertible preference shares beneficially owned by CPF; (ii)
11,738,547,097 ordinary shares beneficially owned by CPF Investment Limited
(“CPFI”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPF; and (iii) 6,017,959,308
ordinary shares which were beneficially owned by ITOCHU Corporation
(“ITOCHU”) in which, as a result of certain provisions in an agreement entered
into between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU, CPF was for the purpose of Sections
317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, taken to be interested in.

(3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited had a long position of
19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company through CPF, its

controlled corporation.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(TCPF.) #419,017,584,153 e A% 2 w] JBe A K # B PB4 (4
) o o @G CPFE 48 HE A 191,261,077, 7488 7T 44 Jit
P e B ey 5 (i) CPF& & B A b )& A WICPF Investment
Limited ([ CPFIJ) B %5 8 A #911,738,547,097 )% % i It Ji%
3 5 B (iii) B FECPF ~ CPFIAIAR i 8 1 3 Ak X & 4k ([HF
TOE K8 1) T S RT R e b TR o R R O A R ) 4R
317(1) () K A3 1806 T 7 » CPF#H AR BE A I S8 1 2%
BEA 196,017,959,308 8 35 18 B JBt 43 0 HE 25 o

3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited 5 # CPF (3§
i3 M) F5 419,017,584, 153 B A 2 Wl B4 K Bl Je 3 (%
q) o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR

SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company.
As a result of certain provisions in the above mentioned agreement entered
into between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU, ITOCHU was, for the purpose of
Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, taken to be interested in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which CPF was interested apart
from by reason of that agreement. As such, ITOCHU had a long position in
19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 39 to
the financial statements of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FAERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into the R#EE_-F _-FHE+_H=1+—HILFERN » K4
B O HE4T T 51 B A2 5 3 2R AR B b i R B i A R A
TE TR 5 o

following connected transactions that are subject to the Listing Rules’
reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

The Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction HME4EEREREESH
Contracts

R-F-NWETAZTHEAZFFFENAL
H > A & W K M} 2 7] BEKSP Vietnam Co., Ltd.
(TKSPME RS |) %51 LR & IF) (40 T8 a2k e s 18 &%
AR

On 30 December 2019 and 9 April 2020, two subsidiaries of the
Company entered into the following contracts with KSP Vietnam
Co., Ltd. (“KSP Vietnam”) (collectively, the “Vietnam Production
Equipment and Construction Contracts”):

Subsidiary Date of Contract Nature Contract Sum

Wi 2+ w1 Gl 324 Bt
(approximate amounts)
(BE#)#H)

C. P. Vietnam Corporation 30 December 2019 Installation of electrical system and related VND30.50 billion
(“CPVC”) “E-UETZA work for feed crumble machine (approximately
C. P. Vietnam Corporation =+H 22 S0 R T B 1A TR SRR A AR B A US$1.31 million)

(feevel) 3054 B e i
(#1314358)
CPVC 9 April 2020 Construction of shrimp hatchery buildings VND187.90 billion
CPVC ZRZFENANLHA and related work (including internal roads, (approximately
fences, drainage system and electrical work) US$8.10 million)
EE LG A B A (B A E R - 1,879 B K G
B~ Bk R BRI E R TR (#8108 3 7T)
CPV Food Co., Ltd. 9 April 2020 Supply and installation of slaughter machine VND31.26 billion
(“CPV Food”) R FZENANHE B 4 2 s A (approximately
CPV Food Co., Ltd. US$1.35 million)
(TCPVR #h 1) 312,61 I
(#1358 3878)
CPV Food 9 April 2020 Supply and installation of equipment for eight VND33.30 billion
CPVE& fih ZRZFENANLHA broiler farms (approximately
H )\ M 1A F 55 B8t HE 22 25 5 Al US$1.43 million)
333
(#143% 3 7C)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction
Contracts (continued)

As at 9 April 2020, being the date of the Company’s announcement,
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF’) was
interested in approximately 49.74% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CPG”) was interested in approximately 48.44% of the issued share
capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF,
the Company and CPG had agreed to treat CPG as a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and accordingly CPG and its associates
were treated as connected persons of the Company. As KSP Vietnam
was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions contemplated under the
Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction Contracts were
treated as connected transactions of the Company under the Listing

Rules.
Office Tenancy Agreement

On 10 April 2020, Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. (“CTI”) (as lessee),
the then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an office tenancy agreement (the “Office Tenancy Agreement”)
with CPQS Realty and Development Co., Ltd. (“CPQS”) (as lessor)
in relation to the lease of certain office premises in Beijing with a
total leased area of approximately 5112.65 square meters for use by
CTI and its subsidiaries. Subsequently on 14 May 2020, the same
parties entered into a supplemental agreement to revise the term of
the Office Tenancy Agreement such that the rental period would run
from 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2023.

The monthly rental payable for each of the 12 months ended 14 May
2021, 14 May 2022 and 14 May 2023, amount to RMB1,354,852.25,
RMB2,709,704.50 and RMB1,354,852.25, respectively.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its associates were treated
as connected persons of the Company. As CPQS was a subsidiary
of CPG, the transactions between CTI and CPQS were treated as

connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

7

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

REXS (&)
HELtERBREEAR ()

PR _FEMAILHE - BWARAR A% HH
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
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EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Construction and Project Management Contracts
for New Shrimp Breeding Facilities

On 13 August 2020, C.P. Aquaculture (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. (“CP
Zhanjiang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a construction contract (the “Construction Contract”) with
CSCEC-CP Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (“CPCEC-CP”) and a
project management contract (the “Project Management Contract”
and together with the Construction Contract, the “PRC New Shrimp
Breeding Facilities Contracts”) with Chia Tai Handing Modern
Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Handing”) to develop
new shrimp breeding facilities in Zhanjiang, Guangdong, the PRC.

Pursuant to the Construction Contract, CSCEC-CP, as contractor,
shall be responsible for the design, construction and related work
for the new shrimp breeding facilities. The construction period was
276 days from the date of the Construction Contract and the total
contract sum was approximately RMB81.9 million.

Pursuant to the Project Management Contract, Chia Tai Handing,
as project manager, shall be responsible for carrying out the project
management of the entire shrimp breeding facilities development
project for a project management fee of approximately RMB4.4
million.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates were treated as connected persons of the
Company. As (i) CSCEC-CP was 50% owned by CPG and (ii) Chia
Tai Handing was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions contemplated
under the PRC New Shrimp Breeding Facilities Contracts were
treated as a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

A

REXS (&)

TENEBREEREERNREAEEESH

PERIZFENATZH . MOKE GBI AR A
A ([ SR AT ) (— A2 A 2 5 HEA W 2
")) B IE R AR R A (THEIER D)) 2T 2
weA R (RSB 7] 1) B B IE K 3 4 SRR S R B A
PR (TIEREES ) AT HH G/ ((HAH
BLA I | > SR A ) A0 [ e I st B A e ot
] 1) > % Je JU A v I g SR Y 0 B U i

WEERAN > PEIER (BABHE) » AFBE
B 305 B A BE T ~ A S T AH B TR o e T A f
ATRRAF AR Z276H > & F AR HNRK
8,190 JC »

MIRIHH AR > EREEM ChEHZ) > AR
EELBCR A R B RIEE > BB A AN
R 440850 -

SN L R 5% IR R > CPG B JL I 8 AW 2 AR A W]
Z BN+ o (i) CPGH A H & 1E K50% I (i) IE
KB T — FKCPGZ W& 2 7l » AR5 o 190507 2 el
B WO A TR JE T B A2 5 R B R T A Rl AR A ]
ZBEAL G o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Report of the Directors

ESHREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) ERXS (E)
The PRC Project Management Contracts FEEEEESRE

During the period between 10 April 2020 and 24 August 2020, a
number of subsidiaries of the Company entered into certain project
management contracts with Chia Tai Handing (collectively, the
PRC Project Management Contracts”) to appoint Chia Tai Handing
as the project manager to manage the development projects at food
production facilities which were being developed by these subsidiaries
in the PRC. The amount of the project management fee payable under
each of such contracts is set out below:

WR-BZRENATHE_Z_FF/N\H_1+WMH
I > WO A 4y W) B i 2 ] S IE K B O ST A T H
HEMERE (GHITREREEAR]) » ZRIEX
S R RSB 5 AR B o A PR 4 D B > AL
H R R R B R H o A B R BE A H
HE A SRS

Subsidiary Date of Contract Project Management Fee
) /58 2 W) & F B HHEMA
(approximate amounts)
(HE#9 2 #0)

CP Food Enterprise (Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. 10 April 2020 RMB452,000

(“CP Qinhuangdao”) “RZEFMATH N R #4528 70
EREMAE(RES)AMRAF

(TIERREE])
Chia Tai Food Enterprise (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. 15 April 2020 RMB934,000
EREMAEEES ARAA SR IRFEMATHRHA N RW93 48 50
Jilin Chia Tai Food Co. Ltd. 19 May 2020 RMB152,000
T WRIE K& i A BRA F “ROFRELATIUA AR ¥E15.28 0
C. P. Food (Nantong) Co., Ltd. 25 May 2020 RMB149,000
IERA A (B FRAF SRR AZTHH N R#E14.9% 50
Chia Tai Food (Suquian) Co., Ltd. 29 May 2020 RMB3,559,000
EREH(EE) ARAFH ZRIFFEHAZTIUH N RHE355.98 76
C. P. Food (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. 7 June 2020 RMB324,000
ERA & () ARAF SR IRFENALH NERWE32.48 50
Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd. 8 June 2020 RMB229,000
KA A BRA ] ZRIZFEANANA ANR¥22.98 50

Fujian Hetai Agro-Industry Co., Ltd.
AR AR A

Longyan Baotai Agro-Industry Co., Ltd.
HE M B A% SRR R

Longyan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Longyan CT”)
HE R IE KA R A A ([HE B IE K )

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd.
WAL IE KA R A #

Longyan CT
HE Bt 1E K

8 June 2020
“RIRFEANANH

8 June 2020
“EREAANA

8 June 2020
TRIRFEANANH

10 June 2020
SEEEAATH

24 August 2020

“ERIFENAZTIH
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RMB1,020,000
N RW100.28 568

RMB213,000
ANRWE21.38 50

RMB349,000
N RM34.98 70

RMB866,000
AR H86.68 70

RMB19,200,000
ANE¥1,92085 58
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The PRC Project Management Contracts (continued)

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates are treated as connected persons of the Company.
As Chia Tai Handing was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the PRC Management Contracts were treated as
a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Acquisition of the Swine Business and the Deemed
Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 14 September 2020, CTI, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and CP China Investment Limited (“CP China”) and CP
Qinhuangdao, which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Swine Business Agreement”) with
Chia Tai Animal Husbandry Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“CTAI”/
the “Vendor”), pursuant to which CTI agreed to purchase, and the
Vendor agreed to sell, the equity capital of 43 companies which were
established in the PRC and principally engaged in the breeding,
farming, slaughtering, food processing and sale of swine in the PRC
(the “Acquisition”) for an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB28,140 million (equivalent to approximately US$4,109 million).

The consideration was settled by the issue to the Vendor by CTI of
new shares in CTI representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged
by such issue. Pursuant to Rule 14.31 of the Listing Rules, such issue
constituted a deemed disposal of CTI (the “Deemed Disposal”).

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its associates were treated as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. As the Vendor was a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, each
of the Acquisition and the Deemed Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company and was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on
2 November 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that are subject to the
Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

Supply
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) (the “2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement”),
for the supply by the Group to HOEL and its associates (the “HOEL
Group”) of various feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products (with related services) produced or procured by the Group
such as animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock, aquatic stock and
processed meats and food products. The 2019 Master HOEL Supply
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2020 and would continue until 31
December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As HOEL
was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement were
treated as continuing connected transactions of the Company under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 18
December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved
annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master
HOEL Supply Agreement was US$1,500 million and the actual sales
recorded amounted to US$1,473,996,000.
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ftrE
High Orient Enterprises Limited
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High Orient Enterprises Limited ([ HOELJ) # % —4
At E 48tk ([2019 HOELBL HEAA 136 1) > FHASSE M)
MHOEL & H B % A -+ (THOEL4E H 1) fit i iy A< 42
[ R s A 4 A B R R B R A
B (R M B » s et - fBHE AR - &
B~ KE Ko T A 5 E b 0 2019 HOELBL
BHEN _—F_RE—H-HEEREE_F
FE+-H=+—H-

SN L R 5 IR R > CPG % e B g 2 ] A A 4 v gk
N B BRI S R AR A W Z B A e R
HOEL% CPGHy [l 2 2= & ¥ 1 i & A &) » 482019
HOELE FE 48 15 5 T8 F 152 5 Wt % M 9% vl B4 3
FTMHARARAFZHFBEBR S -

2019 HOEL#E & 48 15 8 & 42 )% BRI —F— L4
+Z A\ B B AR A B M B o B E BT
FHEFTZHZ+—H IR > 2019 HOELE FE 24 i
BRI T A2 5 vk A 4R LB e 1548 S8 00 I B B
AT B AR A 14£57,399.6 356 o

61



62

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with ITOCHU Corporation
(“ITOCHU”) (the “2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement”) for
the supply and sale of the feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products (with related services) produced or procured by the Group,
such as animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock, aquatic stock, and
processed meats and food products, to ITOCHU and its subsidiaries
from time to time (“I'TOCHU Group”). The 2019 Master ITOCHU
Supply Agreement took effect on 30 October 2019 and continued
until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, ITOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement
were continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU
Supply Agreement was US$8 million and the actual sales recorded
amounted to US$3,215,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement, on 18 November 2020, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with ITOCHU, which
took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31 December

2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master purchase agreement with HOEL (the “2019
Master HOEL Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase of feed raw
materials, packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua
stock, meats and other items required by the Group in the production
and sale of animal and aqua feed, farm and food products (with related
services) by the Group from the HOEL Group. The 2019 HOEL
Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2020 and would
continue until 31 December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As HOEL
was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement
were treated as continuing connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2019 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
on 18 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
approved annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
2019 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement was US$1,930 million and
the actual purchases recorded amounted to US$1,345,258,000.

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2017, the Company had
entered into master purchase agreement with Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (“CTEI”) (the “2017 Master CTEI Purchase
Agreement”), for the purchase of various chlortetracycline products
and such animal drugs (including any antibiotics) required by the
Group’s feed and farming businesses (the “2017 CTEI Products”) from
CTEI and its subsidiaries (the “CTEI Group”). The 2017 Master CTEI
Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2018 and continued

until 31 December 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (continued)

On 30 July 2020, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with CTEI (the “2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase
Agreement”) to expand the categories of products to be purchased
by the Group from the CTEI Group. The Company also proposed to
increase the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
US$4.4 million to US$5.5 million. All other terms of the 2017 Master
CTEI Purchase Agreement remained in effect.

As disclosed above, CPF was the controlling shareholder of the
Company. As at 30 July 2020, being the date of the Company’s
announcement in relation to the 2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase
Agreement, CPF was also interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued share capital of CTEI. Companies in the CTEI Group were
therefore associates of CPF and connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Transactions between the Group and the
CTEI Group under the 2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Supplemental CTEI
Purchase Agreement was US$5.5 million and the actual purchases

recorded amounted to US$4,852,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2017 Master CTEI Purchase Agreement (as supplemented by the
2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase Agreement), on 30 July 2020, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with CTEI, which
took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31 December

2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master purchase agreement with ITOCHU (the “2019
Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase of feed raw
materials, packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua
stock, meats and other items required in the production and sale of
animal and aqua feed, farm and food products (with related services)
by the Group from the ITOCHU Group. The 2019 Master ITOCHU
Purchase Agreement took effect on 30 October 2019 and continued
until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, ITOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement
were continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Purchase
Agreement was US$10 million and the actual purchases recorded

amounted to US$2,004,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2019 Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement, on 18 November 2020,
the Company entered into a new master agreement with ITOCHU,
which took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31

December 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Vietnam Trademark Licence

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 December 2019, CPVC had
entered into a trademark licence agreement with CPG (the “2019
Vietnam Trademark Licence Agreement”), whereby CPG granted
CPVC a non-exclusive right to use certain trademarks owned by CPG
(the “Vietnam Trademarks”) in connection with CPVC’s business
operation. The royalty fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net revenue
of CPVC and its subsidiaries from time to time (the “CPVC Group”)
(including any subsidiary which had been granted a sub-licence to
use the Vietnam Trademarks) from sale of the products manufactured
by the CPVC Group or by third party engaged by the CPVP Group
and provision of services with the Vietnam Trademarks attached or
promoted by the use of Vietnam Trademarks by the CPVC Group.
The 2019 Vietnam Trademark Licence Agreement took effect on 1
January 2020 and would continue till 31 December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates were treated as connected persons of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transaction contemplated under the 2019 Vietnam Trademark
Licence Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2019 Vietnam Trademark
Licence Agreement was US$61 million and the actual royalty fee
incurred amounted to US$50,971,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

PRC Trademark Sub-licence

Prior to the reporting period, on 10 August 2018, CP China entered
into a master trademark sub-licence agreement with CTAI (the
“2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement, CTAI
had agreed to sub-license to subsidiaries of CP China in the PRC a
non-exclusive right to use the trademark in the PRC in connection
with the production, distribution and sale of certain designated
food products under Class 29 and the provision of ancillary retail,
management and consultancy services under Class 35. The royalty
rates payable in respect of the use of the trademarks under Class
29 ranged from 0.2% to 0.4% of net sale value. No royalty fee was
payable for the use of trademarks under Class 35. The 2018 PRC
Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement took effect on 14 August
2018 and continued until 31 December 2020.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company. As CTAI was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement were treated as a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement was US$7.2 million and the actual royalty fee incurred
amounted to US$1,790,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under
the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement, on 30
December 2020, CP China entered into a new master sub-licence
agreement with CTAI, which took effect on 1 January 2021 and
would continue until 31 December 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-
compliance to report to the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures, associates and ITOCHU, rental
income and expenses and interest income with HOEL, which are
disclosed as related party disclosures in note 46 to the financial
statements of the annual report, do not fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction, or were
fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus are not
disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

2016 Facility Agreement

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A.,
Hong Kong Branch and Kasikornbank Public Company Limited
(“Kasikornbank”) as mandated lead arrangers, other lenders (together
the “2016 Lenders”) and Kasikornbank as agent, relating to a facility
amount of US$600 million (the “2016 Facility”) made available to the
Company by the 2016 Lenders (the “2016 Facility Agreement”). The
2016 Facility was used to repay all amounts owing by the Company
under the US$410 million term loan facility agreement dated 19
December 2012 and to finance the working capital and/or general
corporate requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the 2016 Facility Agreement, it would be an event of
default if CPF and its subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage
of the legal and beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the 2016 Facility
Agreement to become immediately due and payable and any
commitments under the 2016 Facility to be cancelled.

2020 Facility Agreement

On 31 July 2020, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated term
loan facility agreement with Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong
Kong Branch as mandated lead arranger, other lenders (together, the
“2020 Lenders”) and Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited as agent
relating to a US$400 million facility (the “2020 Facility”) made
available to the Company by the 2020 Lenders (the “2020 Facility
Agreement”). The 2020 Facility was used to refinance indebtedness
under the 2016 Facility Agreement and some other existing
indebtedness, as well as general working capital of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the 2020 Facility Agreement, it would be an event of
default if CPF and its subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage
of the legal and beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the 2020 Facility
Agreement to become immediately due and payable and any
commitments under the 2020 Facility to be cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2016, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in a company
which is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
animal feed, poultry farming and trading as well as the processing
and trading of chicken meat products in the PRC. As a result of the
acquisition, poultry farming and trading and meat products trading
have been added to the range of the Group’s business in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont,
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Yu Jianping were directors (but not
substantial shareholders) of CPG and/or a number of its subsidiaries
which are principally engaged in businesses including farming and
food products business in the PRC (the “Excluded Companies”).
Accordingly, these Directors have disclosed their interest in
businesses which may compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the farming and food products business of the
Group in the PRC, pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As the Board functions independently from the boards of the
Excluded Companies, the Directors believe that the Group is capable
of carrying on its farming and food products business in the PRC
independently of the farming and food products business carried on by
the Excluded Companies.

The Directors, including those who are considered to have an interest
in the farming and food products business carried on by the Excluded
Companies, will, as and when required under the bye-laws of the
Company, abstain from voting on any resolution of the Board in
respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which he/her or
any of his/her associates has a material interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities
incurred by him/her as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for its Directors and officers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year 2020, the Company applied the principles
and complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
24 February 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BET 3RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 81 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as

Independent Auditor’s Report
B3R BRI E

REESTEE

IR S T R AR R AT A TS B > Ry AR
AR MBI N E G B A EE R - BRI
A8 T A 7 R R A AR A I R Ml LR SRR
o FAM A s L IR L B A -

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
animal feed products, livestock and aquatic animals and
value-added processed food products.

The terms of sales contracts relating to goods acceptance by
customers are similar and revenue is generally recognised
when the products are collected by the customers from the
Group’s premises or when the products are delivered to the
location designated by the customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations and because errors in the recognition
of revenue could have a material impact on the Group’s

profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue included

the following:

o evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue

recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards;

o inspecting manual adjustments to revenue raised
during the reporting period which met specific risk-
based criteria, enquiring of management the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documentation;

o assessing whether revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting period and in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts by comparing a sample
of sales transactions recorded around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
goods dispatch notes or documentation indicating the
customers’ acknowledgement of delivery of the goods

sold; and

o identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the

appropriate reporting period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Valuation of current livestock - swine

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s biological assets mainly represent piglets and
fattening swine which are presented as “current livestock
— swine” in the consolidated financial statements and are

measured at their fair value less costs of disposal.

Management determined the fair value based on market
prices and, where market prices were not available for
certain age groups, based on market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments to take into account differences
in weight. The Group’s current livestock — swine had an
aggregate value of US$528 million as at 31 December 2020.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s current livestock
— swine as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the Group’s total assets and the significance of the
changes in fair value of biological assets to the Group’s
profit before taxation and because the valuation of swine
requires significant management judgement and estimation,
in particular in determining the market prices for swine of
different age groups and in making adjustments for weight
differences.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the Group’s
current livestock — swine included the following:

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to swine
management, in particular, the classification of swine
into different age groups and the assessment of swine
quantity;

° comparing, on a sample basis, the physical count
quantities of swine for each age group to that as set
out in management’s fair value calculation table;

° assessing the experience and knowledge of the
relevant personnel from the Group who were involved
in assessing the value of swine at the reporting date;

° discussing with management the methodology
adopted in estimating the fair value of swine and
challenging key estimates and assumptions adopted in
the valuations by comparing market prices for swine
of different age groups with available market data and
by utilising our industry knowledge;

° assessing whether the fair value of swine was
calculated in a manner consistent with the Group’s
fair value model by recalculating the fair value of
swine based on the inputs, in particular the market
prices for swine and weight difference adjustments,

adopted by the Group; and

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the valuation of swine with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

A
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2021
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HEWE R

SRORFET A= HIREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

2020 2019
R R R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Sy i FEoLFoo
(Restated)
(REH)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FrE B EEY
REVENUE KA 5 4,332,939 3,495,240
Cost of sales & 8 AR (3,051,310) (2,796,044)
Gross profit EH 1,281,629 699,196
Net change in fair value of biological assets 4 ¥ % & 2 foff 2 5 B 5 4 6, 14 2,820 105,554
1,284,449 804,750
Other income, net JC At W A\ 7 33,907 15,330
Selling and distribution costs BB B 4r 8 AR (114,261) (94,280)
General and administrative expenses T RERE R (224,038) (210,436)
Finance costs B 7 B AR 8 (104,707) (109,816)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A 6 P B e 48 -
Joint ventures GERE 23 (50) (37)
A 35%-owned associate — CTI — Ak 35% =2 Bk 45 A A
—ER#&H 24(a) 66,450 -
Other associates Al W 2 A W 24(a) (226) (58)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX o 56 iy ¥ 1 9 941,524 405,453
Income tax i 12 (189,158) (81,113)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM AR A R
CONTINUING OPERATIONS NS | 752,366 324,340
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRILEEER
Results from operating activities, net of tax ~REFEHEEZ BREZ EH 188,657 143,364
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI PR B I R Z W% 1,466,255 -
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM K H L& IL B B % 2
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS WA A s P 41 1,654,912 143,364
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A i 2,407,278 467,704
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME i 2 Uk 2R
Continuing operations FEREER
Items that will not be reclassified HEBEBAGEHSHE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEZHH :
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of office [HE 3 &= e
premises, net (B8) /&R 16 (7,142) 612
Income tax effect Jir 15 ot 5 22 37 1,339 19
(5,803) 631
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2020 2019
SECEE F
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt E e Enyan
(Restated)
(RRE )
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  H: i 4 i W i (%)
(continued)
Continuing operations (continued) AR BB ()
Items that may be reclassified HERRgHEESEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEZHEH
Exchange differences related to B 4Dl S AR R 2
translation of foreign operations T R I 38 25 4 69,381 (8,114)
Cash flow hedge — effective portion BHeERBEEN - A RMEFE
of changes in fair value 8 2 7 A (1,261) -
Income tax effect Fi 3B 253 -
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A G Al 2 T WAL £
Associates W 2% A7) 24(a) 2,065 -
70,438 (8,114)
Other comprehensive income from KRB R RS B R AR
continuing operations, net of income tax 4 T W 3% 64,635 (7,483)
Discontinued operations DA ILRERY
Items that are or will not be reclassified HESAGETMBEEHSZ
subsequently to profit or loss: JHH :
Equity investments at fair value through RE 2 48 B # A FUAE 2 I8 At
other comprehensive income (non- ZTH AR TR (R WA BR
recycling) ) (6,388) 3,568
Income tax effect Jit 45 Bt g 1,597 (1,791)
Disposal of other financial assets H B At 4 7 O - 638
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, M A AR
net 16 - 60
Income tax effect JT 1 G R 2 37 - (40)
(4,791) 2,435
Items that may be reclassified subsequently ~ HZA[GE T HH 0 JEHE
to profit or loss: HEZIHH -
Exchange differences related to B A b 3 % A e L 2
translation of foreign operations HH R B 30 5 30,766 (6,074)
Release of reserve upon deemed BRAEHBERBEZ
disposal of CTI it A Il 3% (16,629) -
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A G Al 2 G WAL £
Joint ventures (e 23 1,380 (265)
Other associates NEW N A | 24(a) 6,006 (1,748)
21,523 (8,087)
Other comprehensive income from KBTS EF RIS
discontinued operations, net of income tax A% HAth 2> T e 35 16,732 (5,652)
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N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
2020 2019
B e I
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt 0T 7T E/nyan
(Restated)
(RRE )
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B it # Bt £ Ac 45 3G fih 4 1 g %
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME
TAX 81,367 (13,135)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A4 % 1 Y i 48 4
FOR THE YEAR 2,488,645 454,569
Profit attributable to: i B BB T
Shareholders of the Company PN/
Continuing operations e il 14 519,153 216,940
Discontinued operations O ILREER 169,643 128,863
688,796 345,803
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI BRI R Z s 41 1,466,255 -
2,155,051 345,803
Non-controlling interest I e o e i 2R
Continuing operations YR s 233,213 107,400
Discontinued operations DRI RS R 19,014 14,501
252,227 121,901
2,407,278 467,704
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 4 Tl W # 48 % & & 7 -
Shareholders of the Company PN/
Continuing operations PRI 604,728 212,419
Discontinued operations &R ILREER 156,287 121,769
761,015 334,188
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI BAE R Z i 1,466,255 -
2,227,270 334,188
Non-controlling interest I e i e E £
Continuing operations PR R 212,273 104,438
Discontinued operations O IR 49,102 15,943
261,375 120,381
2,488,645 454,569
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

A H

2020 2019
R R R
Note US cents US cents
M &t SE Al FEA
(Restated)
(REH)
EARNINGS PER SHARE AR oy ) JB 5 M AY Z A Tt i P
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 15
Basic and diluted 3 A K i
Continuing operations PR R E T 2.049 0.856
Discontinued operations A ILREE 0.670 0.509
2.719 1.365
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI AR 8 IE R IE Z Weai 5.788 -
8.507 1.365

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the
financial statements.

Note:

On 1 December 2020, Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. (“CTI”), originally a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of 43 entities that are principally
engaged in swine business from Chia Tai Animal Husbandry Investment (Beijing)
Company Limited (“CTAI”), a related company of the Company, for an aggregate
consideration of RMB28,140 million (equivalent to approximately US$4,312 million).
The consideration was settled by means of issuance of new shares in CTI to CTAI
representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged by such issue. Upon completion of this
transaction on 1 December 2020, CTI is owned as to 35% by the Company and 65% by
CTAL

Accordingly, the financial results of CTI for the period from 1 January 2020 to 30
November 2020 were de-consolidated and presented as “Discontinued operations” in the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Prior year comparative information has also been restated
to conform with the current year presentation. Financial results of CTI for the month of
December 2020 were equity picked up and shown under “Share of profits and losses of a

35%-owned associate — CTI” on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

AR JBE 2 e G A I S A R R 13 R

Mfat

ERABRE B ARA R (TEXRRE D) > B —RKALAF G A
ZHE AR > R FZRET T — H BRI IE R &R
H)ARAR (TIERER] > —HKARAFRBEAF > POl H435
BB RSB AT WA > A2 281 400 AN R (R R 4
431208 3€50) o MARR E DUIE K88 347 OB B SO > Al IE R
BB BEATR A RIEARICS5% o R ZRET A —HERK
W% > AN A FEA 35%IE KA > JEBR65% A i IE KRB HFFA

Bt s ERBRERRE-ZRE-HA-HEF—H=Z+HILY
[10 0¥ B0 2 S AT A SV 5 R RS i 3 AL I 008 B R 5 4 U5
SRIFAE ) B 2 T D R C AL A B ORI R B 2
B o Py O EAAE RO SR S o IEARBRER R F
A T I B S A R DA 2 3 B MR S A A 4 T W 2 e DT HE
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR OR &

At 31 December 2020 A~ F - &RE+_H=+—H

2020 2019
R e T
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M aE F#C Tt FEoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I i B B e
Property, plant and equipment LE B N & 16 1,588,640 1,988,328
Investment properties wEWE 17 859 11,904
Land use rights - b 5 W 18 89,129 207,105
Other right-of-use assets Hfth £l WE & A 19 418,173 421,209
Non-current biological assets FEEMAEYE E 20 79,622 66,350
Intangible assets I G 21 - 33,375
Investments in joint ventures REBSENRE 23 35 16,915
Investments in associates T 8 o m) W B 24 2,331,002 145,547
Other financial assets Hfth 4 b & 25 - 17,206
Goodwill S 26 - 35,030
Other non-current assets At I 3% B 65,014 69,918
Deferred tax assets I B IE R 37 8,242 12,154
Total non-current assets BB B E 4,580,716 3,025,041
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Inventories Fety 27 409,167 753,403
Current biological assets B A 20 638,820 571,946
Trade and bills receivables JE W B 5 W ik M 28 123,285 258,011
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FH AT MR K ~ 34 4 S o Ath JE e i 3 29 295,802 295,081
Pledged deposits [REELEE 30 11,896 17,699
Time deposits with maturity over three ) H M= A 2 e R
months 30 1,605 2,293
Cash and cash equivalents Ble kB 4E&SEY 30 535,891 422,364
Total current assets 2 B) B 2,016,466 2,320,797
CURRENT LIABILITIES i Bh £
Trade and bills payables FE A+ & 5 W ok Mo 31 391,224 446,116
Other payables and accruals Fo At A B 3k S T AR E 32 434,101 559,094
Lease liabilities HEAME 35 38,076 36,749
Bank borrowings SRAT AR K 33 306,307 1,174,796
Income tax payables WA B £ A 58,241 21,390
Total current liabilities FAb O R= iy 1,227,949 2,238,145
NET CURRENT ASSETS Ui By & R 788,517 82,652
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A e Y B FUAR
LIABILITIES 5,369,233 3,107,693
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REAETHMRR K
At 31 December 2020 A &R “Z4E+H=+—H

2020 2019
CECBE SBNE
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE E e a7 FoLFoo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I i B £ £
Lease liabilities MR 35 442,471 440,361
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 33 829,620 548,180
Corporate bond e X 34 - 11,833
Other non-current liabilities A I 9 B £ A 36 24,882 57,908
Deferred tax liabilities B HE B VE A A 37 39,550 82,373
Total non-current liabilities A Ik W B £ 08 1,336,523 1,140,655
NET ASSETS & 4,032,710 1,967,038
EQUITY BE 5
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 ) Bk S ME A BE 25
of the Company
Issued capital BB AT A 38 253,329 253,329
Reserves ik f 40 3,048,219 1,216,998
Proposed final dividend R R ] R S 13 246,834 71,947
3,548,382 1,548,274
Non-controlling interest FE e P RE 25 484,328 418,764
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 30 4,032,710 1,967,038

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the AFE __—HF_H_+HMHBRAFREFFHMER

Company on 24 February 2021. RHET DL 8 o
Adirek Sripratak %% %6 Arunee Watcharananan
Director # % Director #H
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2o A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

N AL dHE M2 o4
mEERE K
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARTRREL
Other
financial
assets
fair value
Share teserve  Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Isued  premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger ~ Hedging (non- revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling ~~ Total
apitll  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  recycling)  reserve funds  reserve  profits dividend Total interest  equity
bikE
RRERE
g 4] i Kk alk i (R R b L ME - KRR AN FEi L 1
Ik EEE  BRE [ ] BlE ERE)  EHRE BEEE  GERE ¥ & 45 [ IOt
Note — USF000  USSO00  USE'000  USSO00  USE'000  USPOO0  USE'000  USPO00  USE'000  USPO00  USE'000  USPO00  USS'000  US§'000  US§000
Kt Erfr Frfr Eifr Eifr Eifr Fifn Eifn Fofr Eifn Fifr Eofr Fifn Fifr Fofr #rfr
(note 40(0)  (note 40(a))  (nore40(g)) ~ (note 400B)) ~ (note 40(c))  (note 40(d)) ~ (note 40(e])
(WEE00) (Hitan) (R0 (BEOL) (RaE0C) (B0 (HaH0e)
At1 January 2020 REBZZE-N-H B339 00 S4B 68T (1613,180) - B 03B BLML (15094) L8TT98 TIOHT L5480M4 418764 1967038
Profit for the year RERH - - - - - - - - - - 155031 - L5050 250001 2401718
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRithERE
Exchange differences on translation SRR RBTI 2
of foreign operations EiEH - - - - - - - - - 90,705 - - 90705 9440 100147
Equity investments at fair value through EalERAREER
other comprehensive income HAT 8 - - - - - - (6,388) - - - - - (6,388) - (6389)
Income tax effect ity bl - - - - - - 1597 - - - - - 1597 - 1597
Cash flow hedge - effectve porion of changes in -+~ HAKREY - AR E%L
fair value Fian - - - - - (893) - - - - - - (893) (368 (1.261)
Income tax effect ity - - - - - 179 - - - - - - 179 T4 153
Surplus on revaluation of ofice premises, net HERERATER 16 - - - - - - - (1142) - - - - (7,14) (A
Income tax effect fiBnye 3 - - - - - - - 1339 - - - - 1339 -1
Share of other comprehensive income of: Bl
Joint ventures ARbE B - - - - - - 1 - - 1359 - - 1380 - 1380
Associates B () - - - - - - - - - 8071 - - 8071 -8
Release of reserve upon deemed disposal of CTI - B EEKBREZ & 4 - - - - - - - - - (16629) - - (16629) - (16629
Total comprehensive income for the year EReilEAN - - - - - (1) @m0 - B8 1501 L0 I35 148866
Acquisiion of subsdiaries R RE AR - - - - (15609) - - - - - - - (15609) 1009 (13,670)
Capital injection by a non-controlling R U HANON
equity holder - - - (%) - - - - - - - - (99) - (%)
Dividend paid to non-controling equity holders % P Fi bl B MK A - - - - - - - - - - - - - (760400 (T6,040)
Special dividend dilec 13 - - () - - - - - - - - - () - (159)
2019 final dividend declared ERCE-MERIRE - - - - - - - - - - - My MM -
2000 interim dividend CECREMIRA 13 - - (4 - - - - - - - - - (4 - (743
2000 fnal dividend proposed RECE-RERURE 13 - — (M6834) - - - - - - - - Med - - -
Decmed disposal of CT] HEEARR i - - -4 -89 (LT (151 - - - (120800) (121800)
Trnsfer inout) #1/() - - - - - - - L) S 60 - - - -
At 31 December 2020 e 3k 2.3 Ul et | 193309 10740¢ S05.00% 33501 (1,634,386 * (T14)* - 5009 009 (074390 3S42486% 68 38381 48438 4030710
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b#% B B &R A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

=

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AL TR
Other
financial
assets
fair value
Share resetve  Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger (non- revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve recycling)  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total interest equity
SHEE
MR
g [} gl #k aff (RWER h¥ HE BE AR ik F
Bk EEK REE R fi R ERE) EHRE BEEE  WBEE M AMRE AR s WA
Note  US§'000  US§000  US§000  US$'000  US§000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US§000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000 US§'000
Wit #FLfr FEifx Fifr Erfr Erfr Erfr EFifrn Eifa Eifa Eifx Eifx ErTfi Erfrk Eix
(note 40(f)) (note 40(a)) (note 40(b)) (note 40(c)) (note 40(d)) (note 40(e))
(WatH00) (WiE00) (RE00) (i) (Batdod) (Watoe)
At 1 January 2019 REZ-E-H-H 153,319 10740 979,382 12,620 (1,613,900) 133 68924 166,124 (136,331) 1,522,8%9 84443 1355503 346120 1,702,124
Impact on initial application of BRI
IFRS 16 LT %47 - - - - - - - - - (18n) - (181)  (10640)  (385313)
Adjusted balance at REB-RE-A—H
1 January 2019 W 153,329 10740 91938 12,620 (1,613,900) 133 68924 166,124 (136,331) 1494986 84443 1307030 336,081 1,663,711
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - - - - - 35803 - 345803 121,901 467,104
Other comprehensive income for 4 A Jff 2 g -
the year:
Exchange differences on translation ~ SbHE B MBI
of foreign operations R EH - - - - - - - - (12,668) - - (12668 (1,520 (14,188)
Equity investments at fair value REBERAREER
through other comprehensive Hf AT i
income - - - - - 3,568 - - - - 3,568 - 3,568
Income tax effect ERyE 3 - - - - - (1,791) - - - - - (1,791) - (1,791)
Disposal of other financial assets R AR E - - - - - (84) - - - m - 638 - 038
Income tax effect By E 3 - - - - - 0 - - (20) - - - -
Surplus on revaluation of office WERFEHFRE
premises, net 16 - - - - - - 072 - - - 607 - 672
Income tax effect % 37 - - - - - - (1) - - - - (21 - (1)
Share of other comprehensive R Ff 2 ds
income of:
Joint ventures aEbE Ji] - - - - - (36) - - (229) - - (265) - (265)
Associates BaAR 2T - - - - - - - - (1,748) - - (1,748) - (1,748)
Total comprehensive income LY TR
for the year - - - - - 1,677 051 - (14645) 346,305 - 34188 120381 434,569
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — R W A - - - - (19 - - - - - AU - (3,119)
Capital injection by a non- ERitlid BUT AN
controlling equity holder &K - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,058 1,058
Dividend paid to non-controlling % F bl ff i
equity holders [T 43 - - - - - - - - - - - - (39,756 (39,756)
2018 final dividend declared HER-F-NEAMRA - - - - - - - - - - (84443)  (84443) - (84,443)
2019 interim dividend SEOLERARE D - - () - - - - - - - - (%)) - W)
2019 final dividend proposed REZE-NEAMRE 1 - - (117 - - - - - - - 17941 - - -
Transfer of retained earnings of C.P. ~ CPVCAZEAWHEE
Vietnam Corporation (‘CPVC") BA
to share capital - - - 319,554 - - - - - (319,554 - - - -
CTI share capital reorganisation FAREEATA - - - 176559 3,831 (11,03) - (13,033) 31 (196,189) - - - -
Transfr nf{ou) #A/(H) - - - - - - - 319% - (3190 - - - -
At 31 December 2019 REZ-WEF-AZH—H 153309 10740%  8T5453%  608,733* (163,181 (Q215)F  69575%  I3LO4I*  (150,945)* 1,087,798* 94T 1548114 418764 1967038
ES %k

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of US$3,048,219,000 (2019: US$1,216,998,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

solidated Statement of Cash Flows

™ A =
,%/T = Iﬁ ﬁ /Jili =28 %
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

2020 2019
SEOBE 2K
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit FLF FIL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEWHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax W% A58 i 38
Continuing operations RS EE 941,524 405,453
Discontinued operations IR s R 41 1,708,446 183,787
Adjustments for: RO
Bank and other interest income AT R AR B WA 7 (13,444) (11,762)
Net change in fair value of investment BEWEAREE T FH
properties 7 116 2,615
Net change in fair value of derivative e T HARME
financial instruments i3 1 R 7 12,565 (2,009)
Short-term lease payments O e 00 L 4 T 9 20,598 12,951
Finance costs BB AT 8 129,314 142,399
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LE RN V- & P 9,16 141,869 128,543
Amortisation of land use rights - H R 2 9,18 4,057 4,688
Depreciation of other right-of-use assets Al 5 BE 2 BT B 9,19 53,621 44,857
Depreciation of biological assets stated at cost less % BAS I B 5t 478 K Sl 8 2k 4%
accumulated depreciation and impairment BiRZ BB EZ I E 9,20 48,505 43,551
Amortisation of intangible assets LS T P& 1] 21 2,819 2,462
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, HEWE ~ KiE Lk
net N 4R 153 9,16 3,012 1,302
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W3 R Tk e e 9,16 - 15,567
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE Wt 52 5 R ok kA 9,128 1,231 2,569
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and other TR - %4 KA
receivables JRE Wi e 3k kAP 9,129 - 2,589
Net change in fair value of biological assets M R A B 6 (2,820) (105,554)
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI AR IR R E 2 Wt 41 (1,466,255) -
Share of profits and losses of: WAV i ) R s 4
Joint ventures HEk 23 (4,294) (2,597)
Associates I 2% A ] 24(a) (91,161) (26,448)
1,489,703 844,969
Increase in inventories &M (1,968) (123,852)
Increase in biological assets ) ¥ 2 (119,663) (19,808)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills JE Wi 52 50 Rk % S 08 (M) i A
receivables (291,607) 87,737
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TS REK ~ 4% 4 T 3L Al JRE i B 3k
deposits and other receivables (3hm) /A (274,275) 82,702
Increase/(decrease)in trade payables WE £} 52 55 Wk 3 (i) 230,165 (26,877)
Increase in other payables and accruals Al JE AR MRk I R4 2 353,022 36,572
Cash generated from operations REEEZBE 1,385,377 881,443
Short-term lease payments O Ao e 300 L 5 o T 9 (20,598) (12,951)
Interest elements of lease rental paid S AEME 2 B0 8 (49,934) (46,335)
Interest paid SRS (85,940) (103,625)
Income tax paid [BRLRIRETA (205,718) (121,068)
Net cash flows generated from REBHMHZ
operating activities BHEeREFH 1,023,187 597,464
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRETHRER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
2020 2019
“ERORY “ER A
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit Ean FIL T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REGHZBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment il B3~ B B (445,865) (346,746)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities b 3 B £ A (3,275) (5,244)
Increase in land use rights £ R RE B 18 (4,077) (28,442)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets HAeb IR B g wEwm s/ (W) 18,586 (37,634)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B J A ) 46(a)(xi) (69,216) (9,671)
Deemed disposal of CTI BB IR K3 41 (430,145) -
Dividend received from joint ventures WA ESERE 166 2,531
Dividend received from associates W 2 A W) B S 54,963 6,293
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and WY -~ R Kkt BT aE
equipment 10,816 8,746
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights HH B - R T A K OE 1,256 249
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets H B It 4 0K 7 BT A K0 25 - 1,720
Receipt from PRC government on factories R 5 4 28 iy € # 1o RF BAS: k JE
relocation 30,866 47,311
Interest received SR B 13,444 11,762
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFH MM B &0 R FH (822,481) (349,125)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEWEHZ B e E
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank borrowings T 18 SRAT R 30 (c) 2,113,529 1,655,480
Repayment of bank borrowings T3 SRAT A 30 (c) (1,906,336) (1,586,142)
Redemption of corporate bond i I A 2 4 5 30 (c) (11,973) (130,545)
Capital injection from a non-controlling I i o) W 25
equity holder TR A B A - 2,058
Capital element of lease rental paid O AL E M4 2 R &80 35 (43,282) (34,096)
Decrease in pledged deposits S & A 5,222 16,879
Decrease in time deposits with maturity FHABB=MAZ
over three months TE W WA 1,087 12,927
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Company OB T AR F B R (201,364) (110,425)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity holders O AT I e ) 2 T TRt B, (76,040) (39,756)
Net cash flows used in financing activities A0 ) P ) 2 B R R (119,157) (213,620)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Bl 4 B B4 5 (H W 56 3 4R
CASH EQUIVALENTS 81,549 34,719
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4FHIZ B &R B E&FHD 422,364 392,890
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A B 3 4 B) 2 3 B 31,978 (5,245)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERZBERBEEHD
AT END OF YEAR 30 535,891 422,364
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Notes to Financial Statements

BF 7% R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and 21st
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were
involved in the following activities:

Continuing operations

. (i) poultry farming and (ii) production and sale of

value-added processed food products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”)

° significant investment in an associate operating in the
PRC which is principally engaged in the production
and sale of animal feed and breeding, farming and sale
of swine and sale of pork

. (i) production and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals,
and (iii) production and sale of value-added processed
food products in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam
(“Vietnam”)

o investment and property holding
Discontinued operations

. (i) production and sale of animal feed and (ii)
production and sale of swine food products in the PRC

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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Ji— A RERE ML AR B A -
L A A W T A R 5 A IRA ) (TTH &2
B 1) AR BT o AA R Z i i g K 32 5
% 35 b B 23 B AL A Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda
B Ay v BB IE 1697 A il h 02 14 o

J AR o A 2 R B SU g 2 A (A [ A 4R
1) ~ AR B A A e BB A ] > T B
ERPIE S/

FREKERE

. W N RIEE (T E ) ()R
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. A v AL B — R A R R R
B ZHEAR LEREFENBY
ARk o BEAH - 7 A G R K B
A

. TP Ak A e (B R ) (i)
SEERL > (i) B - A ER
B MOKEE > DA B (iii) 8 S R m A

. B R S B
ERIEEEXRE

. TP P R (i) 8 B A Rk M (i) E B 1

b E i

Mo REFT_A=+—H > EERZE
A H] 2 H 4% Y I 2 B Ry AR R A B Sk
fICharoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited ([ CPF 1) » J& B4y it %8 B a8 2% 2 5
T ol | A W N U i =
RAEARAF M EHZERE R AT - CPFA—XKH
A Z& B 5 i B SF B Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited ([CPGJ) HKFFHZ AF] o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets, other financial assets and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value
or at fair value less costs of disposal, where appropriate. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new standards, amendments
to IFRSs and interpretations that are first effective for
the current year. Of these, the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations may be relevant to the
Group:

Amendments to Definition of a Business

IFRS 3
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
[FRS 16 (early adopted)

Amendments to Definition of Material

IAS 1 and IAS 8

None of the amendments have had a significant financial
effect to the Group. The Group has not applied any new
standard, amendment or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

2.1

2.2

fm SLE ()
REEE ()

W SRA RN DL RS T SR A R
SR e BT At B = R ) e K P R — JH DL B
BLSE W) > A P I TR A LR A e Ak
BT o WA KRB OLT > M 2
) e A AR i ) 5 B R R W B A B AR
5 o

i A 5 1 2 25 e A ) = e R > B Ak
e R 1) o MO RS 2 ) 2 (G ) B
5 5 (i) AR AAT e e il e A 2 2 MR L 5 % (i)
FhAKE 25 0 BT BE SO 2 AR 5 WA RR (1) TR
A R 5 ()R] 26 O B B 1 28 A 5
PATER O N ETOR- 8 737 i R o1
At 2 T WAL i T R A T R A A TR
SR EEBR RS WA (W) - R
i AR 4 ) O L B A R T R
A ) 5 o o

EBERREZEX

I iy o ) 22 R A A T I B A R
o ) A o T S BT S R o SR AR R
HRAR o TI R h Al RR B AR A B
AR~ AT SR

I B S B YRR S A

SE3SR BB RET

I e S 5 R R R 201978 K 0 3 0 A I A
1698 BB AT B (F2HTERAY)
B g AR EAMESE

5% B o Bt o it e

USSR Y 15 5T

PRAAE T R [ B¢ S 85 i 1 A i A AR
K S 5 B o AR B ACAE A S SR R
AP AT o 1 AR A 28T HE U~ T R R

93



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 BB R A 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB issued a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

IFRS 3

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or
IAS 1 Non-current?

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
IAS 16 before Intended Use'

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
[AS 37 Contract

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
[FRS 10 and IAS

28 (2011)

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Annual Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,

CHEMESRERNERY KRS E

Ay

WEAMBHRELT A > PEFEHENEE
7 A A R R A~ A RT AR R R > K
FERCFET A= HIEEERRE
B> HLA AR A B B A AR A o e DU B

[llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41!

improvements to

IFRSs 2018-2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that the impact
of adopting the amendment and new standards will have
on the consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be
significant.
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24 FEEHHEME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement in the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances, in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(ii)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)

the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method, as for associates (note 2.4).
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policies decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the
investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that

significant influence ceases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of the
investment including any long-term interest that forms part
thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(a) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(ii)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(f) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(h) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common control are
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method. Under
the pooling-of-interests method, the assets and liabilities
of the acquiree are stated at their historical carrying values
at the date of acquisition and the difference between the
consideration transferred for a business combination under
common control and the total of (i) the acquisition date
historical net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the acquiree
combined by the Group is accounted for as a contribution
from or a distribution to, as appropriate, holding companies in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Accordingly,
there is no goodwill or a gain on bargain purchase as a result
of a business combination under common control. The results
of the acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market values on
the basis of annual professional valuations performed at each
financial year end. Changes arising on the revaluation of
office premises are dealt with as movements in the property
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual premise basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the valuation of the office premises over their estimated useful
lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion of the
property revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of other
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of other property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
other property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to
33.33%

9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the property held as a right-of-use asset which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
at the date of change in use is accounted for as follows:

(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period the
change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount is

credited to profit or loss, to the extent the increase

reverses a previous impairment loss for that property,
or restores the carrying amount of the property to an
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount is credited
directly to equity in the property revaluation reserve.

On subsequent disposal of the property, the relevant

portion of the property revaluation reserve realised

is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship of the Group
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives, from
the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives
used for this purpose are 14-22 years. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

2.4

TEEHERESE (&)

BLEE

TG ISR 2 % P BAR o $RAC R
st S (A st T B FH AR 300 i PR ) B i M A
P A A BB IR DL A P B o AT FH AR B
R A JHE T2 S 4% % 45 2 Al T AE 0
T 08 H 9 PR DA B AR R B ot i
P 03 F 2 A T P AF 300 2 142248 - RS 4F
B R T KA -

HE

ACSR T B A0 BR U IR A £ AR A R (3R
W) M o A& 207 BB 1T RS A — Bt
IR [ P $52 ) O o 0 T 2 B - RN
A (REE) HE - MEFRARRC
il 1) B 2 S P A REAE B P ) R
15 A8 KB 3 AL 25 JU) 4% o BlE 4 RS o

ERAMA

S RIEMEH S Z 68 > K
A ) 0338 432 1 JE AEL S0 4 2 B R L > i)
i A AL 51 4% AL B VR 3 B AT AT A B 2 AR
AR 2 B — AL AR -

AR P L A ke O e P AR S B AL
AR MERRIY A 8 A B 2 A
B ol 0 B P 2 2 AL B BR A o B AR 1 R 1K
AT 7 BT SR AL W > AR 4R R 2 M
A L D S R A AL AL o B A R
BEAAL Z A M B 2 LA RO AL A R

TERL AL Z W PLF > HLE £ A0 25 i A
J01 P9 5 M A AR B Ak BB R SR
B RE A 2 A AR (N Bl ) 3 8 DA 5 ) Bl
W R AT SRR RIEEL BB HERAR > HER
A P 6 A B i 5 T R R S 8 T R R
RPGEHA o FHEAE R R B Ek AR IR
PR BRI T 2 2 T AR AT AR > A
R A ko 7 L B AR 2 I A AR AR B

101



102

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets other than land use
rights and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic livestock
and are measured at their fair value less costs of disposal,
except where the fair value cannot be measured reliably or
when the costs are not materially different from the fair value
due to short production cycle, in those cases they are stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and where
appropriate, less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of biological
assets at fair value less costs of disposal and from a change in
fair value less costs of disposal of biological assets are included
in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase price and
any costs attributable in raising the biological assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, the
depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write
off the cost of these biological assets over their estimated
productive period of 12 months to 36 months. The expected
productive period of these biological assets is reviewed
regularly, and adjusted when appropriate. The carrying values
of these biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that the
carrying values may not be fully recoverable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets, office premises, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
IFRS 15 of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

(i) General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (12-month
ECLs). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (lifetime

ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

(ii)  Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

(ii)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9, other than
derivatives, are measured at amortised cost. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial liabilities at amortised costs (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECLs allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the

terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of

the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and

the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

A

2.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

TEEHERESE (&)

E@EE (E)

(i)

A& 8

2 8 AT B A A6 (AR R A
)

PIOCHEBAR > Bk R AR R AR A A
LEIESVE 3% NSRRI E S/
AR > DR G o A
RO AR 3k i T P D W A b e R
RF o WA B e 1R 7 4R A R o

GRE ¥ %N WA NN
A 7 0 o i AT A % oS A 28R S T ke
R A ) B SR AT B o AR R
W AR 2 T B RA ] -

S 5 4 BR £ R

AR B AT Z B AR ) 0 B
R o B 5 N R RE 1 IR 7 L LGk
J0 9 S R 2B 3 A KT DA M A R N
FEZZBK o BB RA FAKAA
AR LA > YHRECBTIER
ZHER G RANEAT I o AR KT
BAg s REBMARBEILD FTWHE K S H
SR BERGF  ()RESRlEE
A L B R A B SR T S T 4 A TE
fa B 1 5 B (i) B ) e S ) 4 RO 2%
A WSOl T Bt A4 -

AU TR

¥4 B EUR 2 BEE CUBAT ~ WO 2 W 5
G L L TR <

B B F R ) — R B

Hy > KR TR A (W] 4l R B U

o B IR A £ 0 2 Ak B TR KA T IR > %I
AR A T W 2 3 5UA A 2 Ik Tl 5 S e
o JEUHT R > T R B 2 M T 2 I R 4R
i R o



2.4

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
B A R 2

b ¥ HE

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

24 FEEHEREHEE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting, in which case recognition of
any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item

being hedged.
Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated
with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes
in foreign exchange rates and variable rate borrowings (cash

flow hedges).
Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the
profit of loss.

The amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated in
the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take
place, the amount that has been accumulated in the hedging

reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the weighted
average basis, and net realisable value after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

A

2.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

TEEHEREHRE (&)

FE

B T4 A (BR F b ~F- 35 3 ) sl A8 411 B ok
i R AR AR I H AR Z WA B AR A 2
AR FIIR o A BIEEE MR - S T
B 30 ¥ 43 TG 2 R B AR o W) 5 B3 M 75 4% A
st B AN BR e T8 8 WA BET R A5 -

RERREEEY

B& RBESHM T RBE - WK &R
JRE 3 < 9B (T B B B
Z Bl o T FL AR A R K R EOK > BB
AR > — B 5 2 ARZ=MMAN) -
AR A B B AR o 7 HE R AR A
ACHE B 4 A PR 2 BBy Z RATE S B
RS RBEEFHEDA -

B

B DL S 5 B A BT (5 i)
B AR VT il 25 BOR A B U T Ah i DL B
2> 0% AR A W) 5E Z RE Al T > B 7 T
Wt 8 o

YT BLR B TR > M R T
ARG BRI S > s IR
W BUAE G A3 o B IR [T 25 1T 394 o B 06 o
BIEEEE R Z B RA A -

8%

FIe 45 A0 6 455 5 ) S MBS AL I o A 4R 2% DLAP A
U F9 JE R B 2 B 14 A I 48 i DA O
Al 22 T WAL i L ) e AR o



2.4

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

24 FEEFTBREBE(HE)

Frig®i (&)

391w Wi [ 3 T B S 1 G > A
5 A 5 VL A Y B R R B R AL
T He 5 390 A O A A 8 B R b LA A B R
(B Ais) st 5

8 S 0 DL 7 L4 M A 1 B e L A
Bt H Rk Al R T RS R Z A
W R At 2 DL B 1 A

B3 T 545 A > B AT HE SRR 2 T I 2 e
i Ay R BB R

R ET A O LA 55 W) e R 2
B B8 T AR A R TE B E A A > W
A2 5 WE RN 5% 28 5t i ) K ME R B 1R
s &

(i)

M AE AR RABEREZ
B A B ) B R IRk 2 - JL ]
$8% WG ] WY S22 ) > EL B I P 2 T
AT 551 2 A 1 [ 48 o

B T 5145 T Ah o B A AT IR A B 2
3T AR B 2 A e e A o s 45K Tl
A 8 A D o Sl DA VT B A 2 MERR A
i A A K0 A R

T S35 7 OF A AN 22 5 00 W il 2
B £ 5 i 7 Az W 908 B A58 ¥ A BRL T
FIUET R 2R A MR AR B AN
o wt A B RO e A B 1 5 K

(i)

FEFE A E - R AT R AEAEZ
B AT B AT 0000 I 2R IR
B JH 2 DL 5 3 OR 2 T i MR A
i TR AR KB R IR 2R A o i
AL D BT T E

(ii)

11



112

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15. Besides, the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense is
recognised when incurred if the amortisation period of the
asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one
year or less, using the practical expedient in paragraph 94 of

IFRS 15.
Sale of agri-food products

Revenue from the sale of agri-food products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, i.e., when the products are collected by the
customers from the Group’s premises or when the products are
delivered to the location designated by the customers. The
Group’s sales contracts do not permit sales returns except for
where the products are damaged or defective.

Some contracts for the sale of agri-food products provide
customers with volume rebates. The volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to
certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during a period exceeds the threshold
specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates,
the most likely amount method is used.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

L ON -+
KREBEFEHZKA

R A SIS A B R RS A P I > &
TR WA S 8 T A R DL 40 % 45 4 R
BRI - BL% 3T 6 IR O e

B A I R AR A T R o U DLACAR
VA FELIOT % B it R T S P IR T A AR
L BUGwE o AT AU R AE & 7] BA 46 5 4l 5
B o Sl 2 B R o L E A A AR A B R
T 5 P B 1% e 0] g e I AR T RS 1 B AR TR
EHCINRR S AN o4

ST % P A ik SR G AR A S R 2
¥ 300 R 2 — 4 o R A ) o PR R G A
et SR 1SR BEVE S B I RE L Z 31 > A
7 35 TR R0 Y R T B 32 ) (R o b
Bl > i TR 400 W 389 S5 e A S 3 301 )
AR AR > ACHE [ HE A R B B 4 o
R 5515 5% B ¥ 94 1 B M B R AR i 2
I e 8 2 B 3

BHUEGRHHE

B R A Al Y WO\ A B E T D RE RS T R
PR TE R > B AR 5 AR 45 I R 5 SR I i
IRF B AE FE AR AR P R I o R b
RS B Fa A > AR 81 B A A R
BE -

U RO BB I Ay R PR T i
Pram o P E A 7 AR o

(i) Ry

A B0 TS A it W RO S ) AL
AW FIAR > W] 1 B B8 5 4R A3t 9 4t
BT o P 0E % P AT S
TH o 5 7 At TEOUI R AT 411 #l T AR
L > 8 FH di 7T BB Y T 35 o

113



114

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits 